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The Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive is a body corporate under the Transport Act 1968 and operates 
under the name of Nexus.  The Executive Directors are appointed by the North East Joint Transport Committee on 
behalf of the North East Combined Authority (NECA) and the North of Tyne Combined Authority. In the year to 31 
March 2019 the Executive Directors were:- 
 
Executive Directors  

 
Tobyn Hughes Managing Director (Transport Operations) and Director General 
John Fenwick  Director of Finance and Resources 
Raymond Johnstone Director of Rail and Infrastructure  

 
The Tyne and Wear Sub-Committee of the North East Joint Transport Committee has a specific remit to supervise and 
oversee Nexus’ delivery of its Corporate Plan which is developed in accordance with the North East Joint Transport 
Committee’s policy objectives and Nexus’ overall resourcing. Nexus’ governance arrangements are further explained 
within the Annual Governance Statement on pages 8 to 13.   
 
Corporate Objectives 

 

Nexus acts as a delivery agency and officer of the North East Joint Transport Committee for the area covered by the 5 
local authorities in Tyne and Wear.   
 
Nexus’ mission statement is: 
 

  ‘Making public transport great for our environment, economy and communities’ 
 
Nexus’ high-level corporate objectives for the financial year 2018/19 were to: 
 

1) Deliver public transport today 

• Improve the Metro customer journey experience. 

• Introduce a more affordable and sustainable fares offer for Under 19s. 

• Protect levy funded frontline services. 

• Deliver technological improvements. 

2)  Prepare for the future: 

• Procure a new fleet of trains and their ongoing maintenance requirements. 

• Develop proposals for the further devolution of the Northern rail franchise. 

• Develop plans to expand Metro and local rail services. 

• Develop plans to improve the local bus network. 

3)  Focus on organisational effectiveness: 

• Implement change and pursue continuous improvement. 

• Continue with the Metro Asset Renewal Programme (ARP). 

• Make Nexus an employer of choice. 

• Facilitate change in local political governance structures.  

 
Overview of Service Delivery 2018/19 
 
Nexus is responsible for the Tyne and Wear Metro, which during the year was operated by North East Metro 
Operations Limited (NEMOL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Nexus. Nexus continued to own, maintain and renew the 
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system, with the North East Joint Transport Committee having overall responsibility for fares policy.  The Metro has 60 
stations with peak service trains running every three minutes through the central corridor.   

 
Bus services in Tyne and Wear are provided by commercial operators who define and operate approximately 90% of 
routes.  Nexus monitors bus service performance and secures the remaining routes, around 200 services or parts of 
services under contract.  Nexus also owns major bus stations at Gateshead Interchange, Regent Centre, Four Lane 
Ends and Heworth in addition to managing stations at Park Lane Interchange, Eldon Square, Haymarket, Wallsend, 
Jarrow, Blaydon and South Shields. 

 
Residents of Tyne and Wear enjoy several concessionary travel schemes (both statutory and discretionary), 
administered and funded by Nexus, providing free and reduced price travel on different modes of transport to those 
who are eligible.  
 
Nexus runs a cross-Tyne ferry that operates between North Shields and South Shields.  In addition, Nexus also 
provides public transport information to the public via its website, a call centre, electronic displays and printed 
materials. 

 
Our capital investment plans include the Metro: all change modernisation programme, providing a step change in 
comfort and reliability for our passengers.  We are now at the end of the ninth year of an eleven year £352m 
programme to renew and upgrade Metro, having secured capital funding from the Department for Transport in 
February 2010.  
 
During the year, Nexus commenced the procurement of a train manufacturer who will design and build 42 Metro 
trains (84 carriages in total) and a new maintenance depot, which will be built on the existing Metro depot site in 
Gosforth.  The new fleet will offer greater reliability while delivering improved comfort and convenience for 
passengers; air conditioning, digital connectivity, phone charging points and a linear seat layout to create more space 
for wheelchairs, standing room and luggage.  The preferred supplier will be selected during 2019, with the first new 
trains expected to arrive from the end of 2021. 
 
Nexus act as programme manager for the North East Smart Ticketing Initiative (NESTI), which has invested £9.1m over 
the past 8 years with a further £0.7m of investment to come in smart technology infrastructure throughout the North 
East. We are also a member of Network Ticketing Limited, the multi-modal, multi-operator public transport ticketing 
company that operates within Tyne and Wear. 
 
Nexus is also involved, on behalf of the North East Joint Transport Committee, in partnership working across the North 
of England to help improve transport services.  We do this in collaboration with Transport for the North and Rail 
North. In addition, Nexus works in partnership with the North East Local Enterprise Partnership and other agencies to 
improve digital connectivity throughout the region.  Whilst the primary aim of this partnership is to enhance the 
economic performance of the region, it will also provide direct benefits to public transport users, particularly Metro 
customers. 
 
Nexus’ financial position is affected by the current economic climate where restrictions are placed on overall levels of 
net expenditure.  Despite the Revenue Support Grant received from the North East Joint Transport Committee being 
reduced over recent years by £14.6m (or 20%) since 2010, it has been possible, through working more efficiently, to 
operate without reductions in the levels of service provided. 
 
Passenger Numbers 2018/19 
 
The following indicators describe the general performance of public transport in Tyne and Wear during 2018/19:- 
 

• The number of passenger journeys across all modes within Tyne and Wear was estimated at 159.3 million; a 
0.8% increase when compared to 158.5 million in the previous year 
 

• Bus patronage increased to 120.9 million in 2018/19; a 0.5% increase when compared to 120.3 million in 
the previous year 
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• Metro patronage remained at 36.4 million in 2018/19 
 

• Ferry patronage increased to 436,600 passengers in 2018/19; an increase of 3.5% when compared to 
422,000 journeys in the previous year 
 

• Rail patronage increased to 1.6 million journeys in 2018/19; an increase of 14% when compared to 1.4 
million journeys in the previous year  

 
Metro Performance 2018/19 
 

• Metro reliability (operated mileage) was 98.5% during 2018/19, an improvement on the 97.9% achieved in 
the previous year 
 

• Metro Charter punctuality was 79.6% during 2018/19, compared to 85.1% achieved in the previous year 
 
Financial Performance 2018/19 
 
The loss reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (“CIES”) for the group after grants and 
taxation was £5.468m.  This compares to the loss reported in the prior year of £20.047m.  The main cause of the 
variation is the increased pension liability following the incorporation of NEMOL incurred in the previous year. 

The Nexus Group management accounts as presented internally and to North East Joint Transport Committee 
reported a surplus of £0.924m before taxation and after movements in capital reserves.   

The surplus can be compared to the budget for the year as follows:- 

 
 Actual Budget (+/(-)) 
 £m £m £m 
    

Income (50.596) (54.023) (3.427) 
Revenue Support Grants (Note 23) (56.367) (56.367) - 
Other Revenue Grants (Note 23) (26.854) (26.854) - 
Other income (25.577) (25.010) 0.567 
Service expenditure 156.761 159.566 2.805 
Loan interest 1.709 1.713 0.004 
    

 (0.924) (0.975) 0.051 

 

A reconciliation between the management accounts and the surplus as reported in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is included in the Expenditure and Funding Analysis, and also within Note 5 to the accounts. 
 
The balance of usable revenue reserves (Note 19) stands at £15.7m at the end of the year, of which £10.2m is 
potentially available to allow the protection of services during the transition to a balanced budget in the medium 
term.  
 
The balance of usable capital reserves (Note 19) stands at £33.0m at the end of the year, of which £27.7m has been 
earmarked for future investment in the new Metro fleet and other public transport infrastructure. 
 
Therefore, the total balance of usable reserves available as a general contingency to provide for unforeseen events is 
£10.8m.  
 
During the year Nexus invested £29.5m of capital expenditure in public transport in Tyne and Wear which was funded 
primarily by central government grants. 
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The liquidity of Nexus remained strong with net current assets of £68.6m, adequate to cover both short term 
fluctuations and future commitments from usable reserves.  
 
 
Nexus is a Scheduled Body in the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund and its Pension deficit has reduced from £42.8m to 
£36.8m as at 31 March 2019. On 1 April 2017, following the transfer of employees from DB Regio Tyne and Wear 
Limited, NEMOL became an Admitted Body in the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund and its Pension deficit as at 31 March 
2019 is £28.4m, which is disclosed within the group accounts.  
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Nexus manages the risk on its investments by restricting its list of counterparties to institutions with an adequate 
credit rating.  The length of time funds are deposited with counterparties is also restricted, dependant on the credit 
rating of the counterparty.  The amount invested in any counterparty is also restricted by the application of a ceiling. 
Nexus’ investments policy was reviewed by its Senior Leadership Team during 2018/19. 
 
Nexus operates without the requirement of an overdraft facility.  Borrowing is restricted to a long term loan with 
NECA as detailed in Note 18.   
 
Donations 
 
Nexus made no disclosable political or charitable donations during the year. 
The Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive is a body corporate under the Transport Act 1968 and operates 
under the name of Nexus.  The Directors are appointed by the North East Combined Authority (NECA) and, in the year 
to 31 March 2019 were :- 
 
Executive Directors  

 
Tobyn Hughes Managing Director (Transport Operations) and Director General 
John Fenwick  Director of Finance and Resources 
Raymond Johnstone Director of Rail and Infrastructure  

 
The Tyne and Wear Sub-Committee (TWSC) of the Transport North East Committee (TNEC) of the NECA, has a specific 
remit to supervise and oversee Nexus’ delivery of its Corporate Business Plan which is developed in accordance with 
the NECA’s policy objectives and Nexus’ overall resourcing. Nexus’ governance arrangements are further explained 
within the Annual Governance Statement on pages 8 to 13.   
 
Corporate Objectives 

 

Nexus acts as a delivery agency and officer of the NECA for the area covered by the 5 local authorities in Tyne and 
Wear.   
 
Nexus’ mission statement is: 
 

  ‘Supporting the economy and the environment through better public transport services’ 
 
Nexus’ high-level corporate objectives for the financial year 2018/19 were to: 
 

4) Deliver public transport today 

• Improve Metro performance 

• Enhance local and national rail services 

• Embed new technology 

• Deliver the Metro Asset Renewal Programme and related commitments 

• Deliver non-Metro capital projects 
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• Deliver and develop public transport services and facilities 

5) Prepare for the future 

• Obtain a new fleet and prepare for the new Metro contract 

• Secure long term improvements to Metro infrastructure 

• Plan for the expansion of Metro and local rail networks 

• Plan for local bus service improvements 

• Innovate through technology 

• Secure investment in local public transport assets 

6) Focus on organisational effectiveness 

• Refine training and succession planning 

• Ensure Nexus is an employer of choice 

• Focus on health, safety and the environment 

• Service review to balancing the budget  
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The Directors are required by company law to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present a 
true and fair view of the Executive's financial position and performance for that period. 

 
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to :- 
 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently 
 

• ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 

 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
 

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements 

 

• keep proper financial records which are up to date 
 

• ensure that the financial management and accounting control systems are adequate and effective 
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Scope of Responsibility 
 
1. Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive (Nexus) is responsible for ensuring that its business is 

conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  Nexus also follows best practice in 
making arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, 
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

2. In discharging this overall responsibility Nexus is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the 
governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions and which includes arrangements for 
the management of risk. 
 

3. Nexus has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance which is consistent with the principles of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government”.  This statement explains how 
Nexus has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, Part 2 which requires all relevant bodies to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal controls required under the Regulation. 

 
 
The purpose of the governance framework 
 
4. The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which Nexus is 

directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. 
It enables Nexus to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives 
have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 
 

5. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control 
is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Nexus 
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and impact of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 

6. The governance framework has been in place at Nexus for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date 
of approval of the annual accounts. 

 
 
The governance environment 

 
7. The key elements of the governance arrangements are:- 
 

Political Accountability 
 

• The North East Combined Authority (NECA) who took over the duties, responsibilities and functions of the 
former Tyne and Wear Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) on 15 April 2014, is the statutory corporate 
body responsible for designing policies to promote and enhance the provision of public passenger 
transport and for overseeing the implementation of those policies through Nexus.  The NECA develops and 
approves a Local Transport Plan (LTP) which reflects the policy objectives of it, together with the Local 
Authorities in Tyne and Wear and is prepared in accordance with detailed guidance from Government – 
“LTP3 – 3rd Local Transport Plan for Tyne and Wear Strategy 2011/2021”. An integrated LTP covering the 
entire NECA area is currently being developed by the NECA transport team and currently subject to a 
consultation process. 
 

• The Tyne and Wear Sub-Committee of the NECA’s Transport North East Committee has a specific remit to 
supervise and oversee Nexus’ delivery of its Corporate Business Plan which is developed in accordance 
with the NECA’s policy objectives and Nexus’ overall resourcing. On 26 January 2017 the Tyne and Wear 
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Sub-Committee of the NECA Transport North East Committee approved the Nexus Corporate Business 
Plan 2018/19. 
 

• In addition, Nexus reports its financial performance to the Transport North East Committee as part of a 
composite report prepared by the Chief Finance Officer to the NECA. The NECA’s Leadership Board 
approves Nexus’ revenue and capital budgets annually. 
 

• As an officer of the NECA, Nexus is also subjected to scrutiny of its performance through the NECA’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Nexus is also asked periodically to attend the NECA’s Governance 
Committee. 

 
 
 Nexus management structure and how it is governed 
 

• Nexus is led by its Director General who is also the Managing Director (Transport Operations) for the 
NECA. By law, Nexus must have a Director General and at least two other directors. In this regard, the 
Director General is supported by the Director of Finance and Resources and the Director of Rail and 
Infrastructure. All three executive directors are appointed by the political body responsible for overseeing 
Nexus’ delivery arrangements. 
 

• In addition, there is a Senior Leadership Team (SLT) comprising the three executive directors, Customer 
Services Director, Transport Strategy Directory, Metro Services Director, Group Head of Legal and Group 
Head of Human Resources whose responsibilities relate to all areas of the organisation.  The SLT meets 
weekly and is chaired by the Director General.  
 

• The SLT replaced the Corporate Management Team (CMT) following a review of the senior management 
structure at Nexus.  CMT approved the changes at its meeting on 7 November 2017 with the first meeting 
of SLT taking place on 10 November 2017.  
 

• An Audit Committee whose membership consists of individuals independent of Nexus provides assurance 
to SLT and the NECA by reviewing the adequacy of internal controls, monitoring the performance of the 
Internal Audit section, agreeing the internal and external audit plans, overseeing corporate governance 
and by reviewing the annual accounts, prior to their approval by the SLT. In addition, the Audit Committee 
receives periodic reports from Nexus’ external auditor for review. Paragraph 8 of the Annual Governance 
Statement sets out the Audit Committee’s current Terms of Reference. 

 
 
 Nexus arrangements to secure good governance 
 

• Nexus has a corporate performance management system to identify and deal with possible failures in 
service delivery.  Progress against departmental key performance indicators and service improvement 
plans, drawn from the Corporate Business Plan, is monitored on a 4 weekly basis by SLT.  
 

• The roles and responsibilities of the Nexus executive directors and SLT are set out in Nexus’ Standing 
Orders.  The SLT has a work programme covering (not exclusively) approval of the Capital and Revenue 
budgets, the Corporate Business Plan, Safety Plan, key objectives, policies, financial and risk strategies 
alongside service and financial performance monitoring throughout the year. 
 

• Powers are delegated formally from the SLT to individuals as recorded in the Standing Orders document 
which are available to all employees via the Nexus intranet.   
 

• The day-to-day business of Nexus is therefore governed by formal Standing Orders including Financial 
Regulations which includes a Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees as well as separate specific 
policies and regulations which cover the proper use of ICT assets and resources, the procurement of goods 
and services, fraud and corruption, gifts and hospitality and a number of other areas. 
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• The Standing Orders including Financial Regulations are subject to review and updated as required, 
subject to SLT approval. 
 

• As part of the continual review process, Heads of Service and Directors are required to complete and sign 
an annual assurance statement declaration outlining the key features of the systems of internal control 
within their area of responsibility.  In addition, Heads of Service and Directors, along with the executive 
directors are required to sign a related party transactions declaration, highlighting their relationships with 
external organisations with whom Nexus may have transacted and where this could be of material 
significance to the annual accounts.  This allows them to identify whether the arrangements set out are in 
place and operating effectively, identify problems encountered and set out action that has been taken or 
is proposed to address those issues. 
 

• Any significant risks identified by general reporting will be considered by the SLT for inclusion in the 
Corporate Risk Register.  Departmental risk registers are formally reviewed and updated periodically 
alongside a review of the status of approved departmental action plans. 
 

• The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed at each meeting of the Tyne and Wear Sub-Committee of the 
NECA Transport North East Committee, having been reviewed at SLT.  The Corporate Risk Register is also 
reviewed at each meeting of the Audit Committee. 
 

• Nexus operates an internal audit service utilising specialist audit services from Newcastle City Council (in 
its capacity as the internal auditor for the NECA) under a service level agreement, which is subject to 
regular inspection by the external auditor who reports annually to SLT in communicating the outcome of 
its audit into Nexus’ statement of accounts, their assessment of the arrangements to secure value for 
money and matters that they are required to, or wish to bring to the SLT’s attention. In addition, the 
external auditor reports to quarterly meetings of the Nexus Audit Committee on a range of other matters 
and in doing so, places great reliance on the work carried out by the Internal Audit section. 
 

• Internal Audit monitor and review the quality and effectiveness of internal control.  The audit plan is 
developed in line with best practice using a robust risk model, informed by the annual audit strategy and is 
approved by the Audit Committee.  The audit methodology is contained within the Audit manual which is 
largely based on the CIPFA model, and reflects the standards defined by the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 2017 and the CIPFA Application Note and meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015.    
 

• Reports for each audit undertaken are submitted to relevant line managers and Directors.  Reports include 
the Head of Internal Audit’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal control, together with recommendations for any improvements.  The process is subject to 
escalation where agreement cannot be reached and includes quarterly reviews of recommendations by 
the Audit Committee to ensure that they are acted upon. 
 

• Nexus operates a Performance Review process for all APT and C staff (which are known as ABC Reviews).  
This review process is intended in part to ensure that sufficient skills and knowledge are held by staff to 
allow them to carry out their roles effectively and to meet known future requirements in line with 
corporate improvement projects and plans. 
 

• Nexus carries out a substantial amount of market research and customer satisfaction tracking studies and 
there is a formal complaints procedure for those who want to express their dissatisfaction with any aspect 
of public transport delivery.   
 

• Nexus has in place a protocol and strategy for acting in partnership with other bodies.  Major partnerships 
are governed by statutory and legal frameworks.  SLT review partnership arrangements on an annual 
basis. 
 

• On 1 April 2010 Nexus appointed DB Regio Tyne and Wear Limited to provide railway passenger services 
for the Metro Concession under the terms of an agreement dated 2 February 2010 until March 2017 with 
an option available to Nexus to extend to March 2019. At its meeting on 24 March 2016 the NECA 
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endorsed Nexus’ decision not to extend the Concession to March 2019 and agreed to Nexus taking over in 
house operations of Metro from 1 April 2017 when the responsibility for the delivery of Metro Passenger 
Services returned to Nexus, through its wholly owned subsidiary, North East Metro Operations Ltd (Co Reg 
No 10552145). 
 

• During the financial year 2017/18, Nexus continued its Metro All Change programme which will deliver 
£350m of investment across the Tyne and Wear Metro system between 2010 and 2021. In order to 
effectively govern this programme, specific reporting requirements ensure that periodic progress is 
reported to SLT each reporting period including progress, reporting and consideration of monthly reports 
to DfT. 
 

• During 2017/18, Nexus continued discussions with the DfT regarding funding for the procurement of a 
new Metro fleet.  On 20 November 2017 the government announced funding for a new a Metro fleet and 
maintenance facility, in the form of a commitment to provide £337m.  A further £25m will be provided 
from Nexus’ reserves for a total investment of £362m. 
 

• During 2017/18, Nexus formed a joint programme board with DfT in order to help govern the delivery of 
its various activities part funded by DfT. This builds upon inter alia, DfT's Assurance Review Team (ART) 
which in 2017 stated that they are of the opinion that Nexus is managing delivery of the Metro 
Reinvigoration Phase 2 Programme with a high degree of competence and that the maturity of the 
project, asset and commercial management is appropriately scaled for the size and complexity of the 
programme. 

 
 
Review of effectiveness 
 
8. Nexus has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance 

framework including the system of internal control.  The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the 
managers within Nexus who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report and also by comments made by the external auditors 
and other review agencies and inspectorates.  The terms of reference for the Audit Committee say it will:- 

 
• Provide assurance relating to the corporate governance requirements for the organisation, including the 

provision of necessary assurance to the NECA Governance Committee who will receive the Annual Audit 
Letter; 
 

• Consider and make recommendations to the Senior Leadership Team in the appointment of the external 
Auditor and the audit fee and, also in the appointment of the Internal Auditor and fee if outsourced; 
 

• Approve the annual Internal Audit Plan and consider the annual report of the Internal Auditor; ensuring 
recommendations are implemented within agreed timescales; 
 

• Consider Nexus’ internal control systems, together with the Internal Audit Plan and assessment of the 
audit performance, including the Quarterly Audit Progress Reports, ensuring agreed recommendations are 
implemented within agreed timescales; 
 

• Consider the external auditor’s Audit Strategy Memorandum including the nature and scope of the audit 
and its relationship with the Internal Audit Plan; 
 

• Consider in draft form the audited Financial Accounts, and the external auditor’s Audit Completion Report 
and Annual Audit Letter; 
 

• Make requests as appropriate to the Nexus Senior Leadership Team on matters where it is considered 
further information or action is required; 
 

• Review Nexus’ Corporate Risk Register on a quarterly basis and make recommendations, ensuring the 
Register reflects current and future risks and appropriate mitigation and controls on a timely basis; 
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• Review any significant findings of internal investigations and receive and act upon internal audit reports 

on breaches of Standing Orders; 
 

• Review all waivers of Nexus’ Standing Orders on a quarterly basis; 
 

• Review the Gifts and Hospitality Register on a quarterly basis and other Registers, etc. as considered 
necessary; and 

 
9. The Head of Internal Audit reports to the Nexus Director of Finance and Resources, but in order to ensure 

independence has a right of access to both the Director General and the Nexus Audit Committee. 
 

10. The Head of Internal Audit provides an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system 
of internal control, which it incorporates in its Audit Report to the Audit Committee.  The opinion of the Head 
of Internal Audit based on the internal audit work undertaken in year is that the control environment 
throughout the year is effective and provides substantial assurance.  No system of control can give absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss and, accordingly, this opinion does not provide such absolute 
assurance. There are no qualifications to the above opinion 
 

11. Heads of Service have carried out self-assessments of the processes and controls they have in place to allow 
them to achieve their service objectives.  Such assessments are completed on an annual basis. 
 

12. The performance management framework requires scrutiny of departmental action plans and key 
performance indicators as they relate to the delivery of strategies, underpinned by the Corporate Plan.  SLT 
receive a composite performance report for each period in relation to this subject covering key aspects of the 
services that Nexus delivers.  
 

13. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by: - 
 

• the work of Heads of Service within Nexus; 
 

• the work of Internal Audit service; 
 

• the performance management framework; 
 

• the external auditors in their reports. 
 
14. The results of the review of Nexus’ system of internal controls have concluded that it is satisfactory and 

effective and that Nexus has in place adequate corporate arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of its resources. 
 

15. During 2015/16, North Tyneside Council carried out a peer review of Newcastle City Council’s Internal Audit 
Section against the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA Application Note 
and concluded that the Section was substantially compliant; the two recommendations made as a 
consequence of this review were subsequently implemented. 
 

16. Nexus financial management arrangements conform with the government’s requirements of the CIPFA 
statement on the role of the Chief Financial Officer in local government.  
 

17. In summary, the Director of Finance and Resources is Nexus’ nominated section 151 officer and is responsible 
for the making arrangements for the proper administration of Nexus’ financial affairs. In regard to the role that 
the Director of Finance and Resources undertakes within Nexus as it relates to the CIPFA statement on the role 
of the Chief Financial Officer in local government, the Director of Finance and Resources:- 

 
• is one of three Executive Directors and is therefore a key member of the Nexus senior leadership team; 
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• is responsible for determining the financial implications of all reports that are considered by the SLT and 
its project boards and in this respect has regard to both immediate and longer term implications, 
opportunities and risks as well as alignment with the organisation’s medium term financial strategy; 
 

• actively promotes the economic, efficient and effective use of public money;  
 

• leads a finance function that is adequately resourced and has staff that are suitably qualified; 
 

• is a member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy with twenty-three years post 
qualification experience. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TJ Hughes     JD Fenwick 
 Managing Director (Transport Operations)  Director of Finance and Resources   
 
 xxxxxxx 
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Opinion on the financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of Nexus and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 under the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the Nexus and Group Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, the Nexus and Group Balance Sheet, the Nexus and Group Movement in Reserves Statement, 

the Nexus and Group Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant 

accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 

the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Nexus and the Group as at 31 March 2018 and of its 

expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. 

We are independent of Nexus and the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to 

you where: 

• the Director of Finance and Resources use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements is not appropriate; or 

• the Director of Finance and Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 

uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about Nexus and the Group’s ability to continue to adopt the 

going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 

statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information  

The Director of Finance and Resources is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

Annual Governance Statement and information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 

information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 

have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. 
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We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Director of Finance and Resources for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Director of Finance and Resources is responsible for 

the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper 

practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2017/18, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Director of Finance and Resources is also 

responsible for such internal control as the Director of Finance and Resources determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Director of Finance and Resources is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless 

Nexus and the Group is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another 

entity. The Director of Finance and Resources is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for 

Nexus and the Group to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report. 

Conclusion on Nexus arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

Respective responsibilities of Nexus and the auditor 

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 

General in November 2017, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects,  Nexus has put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 

2018. 

Basis for conclusion 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 

General, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued in November 2017, as to whether Nexus had 

proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 

sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as 

that necessary for us to consider in satisfying ourselves whether Nexus put in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.  

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such 

work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, Nexus had put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Responsibilities of Nexus  

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Nexus is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 

of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of 

these arrangements.  

Auditor’s responsibilities in relation to review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

the use of resources 

We are required under section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that Nexus 

has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of 

Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to 

proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of Nexus’ 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 

We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if: 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

• we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or 

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014. 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

Use of the audit report 

This report is made solely to the Directors of Nexus and the Group, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 

Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 

might state to the Directors of Nexus and the Group those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s 

report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 

anyone other than the Directors of Nexus and the Group, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 

opinions we have formed.  

Certificate 

We certify that we have completed the audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.  

  

  

  

Cameron Waddell, Partner 

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

Salvus House 

Aykley Heads 

Durham 

DH1 5TS 

xxxxx 
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The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements show the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 
 
Group 

 
      

2019    2018  
Gross 

Expend-
iture 

 Gross 
Income 

 Net 
Expend-

iture 

  
 

Notes 

Gross 
Expend-

iture 

 Gross 
Income 

 Net 
Expend-

iture 

 

£000  £000  £000    £000  £000  £000  
              

(98,266)  73,166  (25,100)  Metro  (94,923)  73,875  (21,048)  
(40,612)  1,699  (38,913)  Concessionary Travel  (39,869)  1,446  (38,423)  
(16,740)  3,806  (12,934)  Bus Services and Infrastructure  (17,418)  3,770  (13,648)  

(9,049)  865  (8,184)  Other Transport Services  (8,985)  788  (8,197)  

(1,655)  -  (1,655)  Corporate costs  (1,415)  -  (1,415)  

(38)  -  (38)  Non distributed costs  (24,734)  -  (24,734)  

              
(166,360)  79,536  (86,824)  Cost of services  (187,344)  79,878  (107,465)  
              

-  56,367  56,367  Non-specific grant income 21 -  57,557  57,557  
-  27,884  27,884  Capital grants applied 21 -  33,185  33,185  
-  19  19  Gain/(Loss) on disposal of non-current assets 7 -  20  20  

(10,980)  8,066  (2,914)  Financing costs and investment income 4 (10,407)  7,345  (3,061)  
              
(177,340)  171,872  (5,468)  Surplus/(Loss) on provision of services  (197,751)  177,986  (19,765)  

              
    -  Taxation charge for the year 6     (282)  
              
    (5,468)  Surplus/(Loss) for the year after taxation      (20,047)  
              
    -  Gains on Revaluation of property    -  
            
    12,253  Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability    (4,690)  
              
    6,785  Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure    13,279  

 
 
All amounts relate to continuing operations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Notes on pages 26 to 61 form part of these accounts. 
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Nexus 
 

2019    2018  
Gross 

Expend-
iture 

 Gross 
Income 

 Net 
Expend-

iture 

  
 

Notes 

Gross 
Expend-

iture 

 Gross 
Income 

 Net 
Expend-

iture 

 

£000  £000  £000    £000  £000  £000  
              

(97,720)  72,264  (25,456)  Metro  (94,375)  72,635  (21,740)  
(40,612)  1,699  (38,913)  Concessionary Travel  (39,869)  1,446  (38,423)  
(16,740)  3,806  (12,934)  Bus Services and Infrastructure  (17,418)  3,770  (13,648)  

(6,567)  865  (5,702)  Other Transport Services  (6,276)  788  (5,488)  

(1,594)  -  (1,594)  Corporate costs  (1,348)  -  (1,348)  

-  -  -  Non distributed costs  -  -  -  

              
(163,233)  78,634  (84,599)  Cost of services  (159,286)  78,639  (80,647)  
              

-  56,367  56,367  Non-specific grant income 21 -  57,557  57,557  
-  27,884  27,884  Capital grants applied 21 -  33,185  33,185  
-  19  19  Gain/(Loss) on disposal of non-current assets 7 -  20  20  

(8,769)  6,535  (2,234)  Financing costs and investment income 4 (8,397)  5,937  (2,459)  
              
(172,002)  169,439  (2,563)  Surplus on provision of services  (167,683)  175,338  7,655  

              
    -  Taxation charge for the year 6     112  
              
    (2,563)  Surplus for the year after taxation      7,767  
              
    -  Gains on Revaluation of property    -  
            
    9,620  Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability    (4,690)  
              
    7,057  Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure    13,586  

 
 
All amounts relate to continuing operations. 
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The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by Nexus. The 
net assets of Nexus (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by Nexus.   
 

Group      
31 March 

2019  
31 March 

2018  
 Notes     £000  £000  
          
ASSETS          
Non-Current Assets          
Property, Plant & Equipment 7     465,048  460,182  
Intangible Assets 8     2,365  2,860  
Assets under Construction 9     24,807  30,891  
Investments 10     1  1  
           
      492,221  493,934  

          
Current Assets          
Short Term Debtors 13     16,689  16,375  
Inventories 11     2,956  2,852  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12     76,385  75,647  
           
      96,030  94,874  

          
LIABILITIES          
Current Liabilities          
Short Term Borrowing 14     (1,575)  (3,335)  
Short Term Creditors 15     (24,540)  (24,348)  
           
      (26,115)  (27,683) ) 

          
Non-Current Liabilities          
Provisions 16     (4,466)  (3,222)  
Long Term Borrowing 18     (36,726)  (38,302)  
Deferred Taxation 17     (4,763)  (4,763)  
Net Pension Liabilities 19, 20     (65,139)  (70,581)  
Capital Grants received in advance      -  -  
           
      (111,094)  (116,868)  

          
Net Assets      451,042  444,257  

          
FINANCED AS FOLLOWS :-          
          
 Usable Reserves 19     48,671  47,900  
 Unusable Reserves 19     402,371  396,357  
           
      451,042  444,257  

 
 
 
 
The Notes on pages 26 to 61 form part of these accounts. 
 

 

 

 
 
TJ Hughes     JD Fenwick 
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Managing Director (Transport Operations)  Director of Finance and Resources  xxxxxx 
 
 

Nexus      
31 March 

2019  
31 March 

2018  
 Notes     £000  £000  
          
ASSETS          
Non-Current Assets          
Property, Plant & Equipment 7     464,048  460,182  
Intangible Assets 8     2,365  2,860  
Assets under Construction 9     24,807  30,891  
Investments 10     1  1  
           
      492,221  493,934  

          
Current Assets          
Short Term Debtors 13     16,394  16,953  
Inventories 11     2,956  2,852  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12     70,845  71,258  
           
      90,195  91,063  

          
LIABILITIES          
Current Liabilities          
Short Term Borrowing 14     (1,575)  (3,335)  
Short Term Creditors 15     (19,980)  (21,457)  
           
      (21,555)  (24,792)  

          
Non-Current Liabilities          
Provisions 16     (4,466)  (3,222)  
Long Term Borrowing 18     (36,726)  (38,302)  
Deferred Taxation 17     (5,863)  (5,863)  
Net Pension Liabilities 20     (36,770)  (42,840)  
Capital Grants received in advance      -  -  
           
      (83,825)  (90,227)  

           
Net Assets      477,036  469,978  

          
FINANCED AS FOLLOWS :-          
          
 Usable Reserves 19     46,296  45,881  
 Unusable Reserves 19     430,740  424,097  
          
      477,036  469,978  

 
 
The Notes on pages 26 to 61 form part of these accounts. 
 
     

 

 

 

 

 
 
TJ Hughes     JD Fenwick 
Managing Director (Transport Operations)  Director of Finance and Resources          xxxxxxxx 
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The Movement in Reserves Statements show the movement in the year on the different reserves held by Nexus, 
analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves’ (those that hold 
unrealised gains and losses, where amounts would only become available to fund expenditure if the assets are sold); or 
those that hold timing differences (for example the Capital Grant Deferred Account).  The Increase/(Decrease) before 
Transfers line shows the economic cost of providing Nexus’ services and the provision of grants to fund the introduction 
of capital assets, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Group Usable Reserves  Unusable Reserves    

                   

 Total  Revenue  Capital  Total  Capital  

Pension 
(Note 

21)  
Grant 

Deferred  
Reval-
uation  

 
 

Total 

 

                   
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  
                   
At 31 March 2017 43,214  15,540  27,674  418,899  27,338  (41,220)  432,094  687  462,113  
                    
Surplus on provision of services (19,765)  (19,765)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (19,765)  
Taxation (282)  (282)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (282)  
Remeasurement of the net 
Defined Benefit liability 

2,191  2,191  -  -  -  -  -  -  2,191  

                   
Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

                  

(17,856)  (17,856)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (17,856)  
                   
Grants released 24,697  24,697  -  (24,697)  -  -  (24,697)  -  -  
Capital grants applied (33,185)  (33,185)  -  33,185  -  -  33,185  -  -  
                   
Increase/(decrease) before 
Transfers 

                  

(26,344)  (26,344)  -  8,488  -  -  8,488  -  (17,856)  
                   
Transfer from unusable 
capital reserves 1,670  191  1,479  (1,670)  (1,670)  -  -  -  

 
- 

 

Transfer from Pension Reserve 29,361  29,361  -  (29,361)  -  (29,361)  -  -  -  
             -      
Increase/(decrease) in 2017/18 4,686  3,207  1,479  (22,542)  (1,670)  (29,361)  8,488  -  (17,856)  

                   
                   
                   
At 31 March 2018 47,900  18,747  29,153  396,357  25,668  (70,581)  440,582  687  444,257  
                    
Loss on provision of services (5,468)  (5,468)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (5,468)  
Taxation -  -  -   - -   - -  -  -  
Remeasurement of the net 
Defined Benefit liability 

12,253  12,253  -  -  -  -  -  -  12,253  

                   
Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

                  

6,785  6,785  -  -  -  -  -  -  6,785  
                   
Grants released  27,620  27,620  -  (27,620)  -  -  (27,620)  -  -  
Capital grants applied (27,884)  (27,884)  -  27,884  -  -  27,884  -  -  
                   
Increase/(decrease) before 
Transfers 

                  

6,521  6,521  -  264  -  -  264  -  6,785  
                   
Transfer from unusable 
capital reserves (308)  (4,158)  3,850  308  308  -  -  -  - 

 

Transfer from Pension Reserve (5,442)  (5,442)  -  5,442  -  5,442  -  -  -  
                   
Increase/(decrease) in 2018/19 771  (3,079)  3,850  6,014  308  5,442  264  -  6,785  

                   

At 31 March 2019 48,671  15,668  33,003  402,371  25,976  (65,139)  440,846  687  451,042  

 
 
The Notes on pages 26 to 61 form part of these accounts. 
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Nexus Usable Reserves  Unusable Reserves    

                   

 Total  Revenue  Capital  Total  Capital  

Pension 
(Note 

21)  
Grant 

Deferred  
Reval-
uation  

 
 

Total 

 

                   
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  
                   
At 31 March 2017 41,493  13,819  27,674  418,899  27,338  (41,220)  432,094  687  460,392  
                    
Surplus on provision of services 7,655  7,655  -  -  -  -  -  -  7,655  
Taxation 112  112  -  -  -  -  -  -  112  
Remeasurement of the net Defined 
Benefit liability 1,820  1,820  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,820 

 

                   
Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

                  

9,587  9,587  -  -  -  -  -  -  9,587  
                   
Grants released 24,697  24,697  -  (24,697)  -  -  (24,697)  -  -  
Capital grants applied (33,185)  (33,185)  -  33,185  -  -  33,185  -  -  
                   
Increase/(decrease) before 
Transfers 

                  

1,099  1,099  -  8,488  -  -  8,488  -  9,587  
                   
Transfer from unusable 
capital reserves 1,670  191  1,479  (1,670)  (1,670)  -  -  -  - 

 

Transfer from Pension Reserve 1,620  1,620  -  (1,620)  -  (1,620)  -  -  -  
             -  -    
Increase/(decrease) in 2017/18 4,388  2,909  1,479  5,199  (1,670)  (1,620)  8,488  -  9,587  

                   
                   
                   
At 31 March 2018 45,881  16,728  29,153  424,097  25,668  (42,840)  440,582  687  469,978  
                    
Surplus on provision of services (2,563)  (2,563)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (2,563)  
Taxation -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Remeasurement of the net Defined 
Benefit liability 9,620  9,620  -  -  -  -  -  -  9,620 

 

Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

                  

7,057  7,057  -  -  -  -  -  -  7,057  
                   
Grants released  27,620  27,620  -  (27,620)  -  -  (27,620)  -  -  
Capital grants applied (27,884)  (27,884)  -  27,884  -  -  27,884  -  -  
                   
Increase/(decrease) before 
Transfers 

                  

6,793  6,793  -  264      264  -  -  
                   
Transfer from unusable 
capital reserves (308)  (4,158)  3,850  (308)  308    -  -  - 

 

Transfer from Pension Reserve (6,070)  (6,070)  -  (6,070)  -  6,070  -  -  -  
                   
Increase/(decrease) in 2018/19 415  (3,435)  3,850  6,642  308  6,070  264  -  7,057  

                   

At 31 March 2019 46,296  13,293  33,003  430,740  25,976  (36,770)  440,846  687  477,036  
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The Notes on pages 26 to 61 form part of these accounts. 
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The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of Nexus during the reporting period.  
The statement shows how Nexus generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, 
investing and financing activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the 
extent to which the operations of Nexus are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided 
by Nexus.  Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are 
intended to contribute to Nexus’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to Nexus. 
 
                 Group  Nexus  
  2019  2018  2019  2018  
 Notes £000  £000  £000  £000  
          
Net surplus/(deficit) on provision of services after 
taxation  (5,468)  (20,047)  (2,563)  7,767  
          
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash flows :-          
 Capital grants applied  (27,884)  (33,185)  (27,884)  (33,185)  
 Financing costs and Investment  1,164  1,480  1,164  1,480  
 Pension transactions  6,811  31,552  3,550  3,440  
 Depreciation  27,364  25,014  27,364  25,014  
 Loss/(gain) on disposal of non-current assets* 7 167  2,648  167  2,648  
 (Increase)/decrease in debtors  199  3,065  970  2,347  
 (Increase)/decrease in inventories 11 (104)  (1,951)  (104)  (1,951)  
 Increase/(decrease) in creditors and provisions  1,436  4,973  (131)  1,600  
           
Net cash flows from operating activities  3,684  13,547  2,533  9,159  

          
Investing Activities          
          
Payments on capital projects  (25,836)  (32,264)  (25,836)  (32,264)  
Capital grants received  27,489  32,336  27,489  32,336  
Net receipts from disposal of non-current assets 7 19  20  19  20  
          
Net cash flows from investing activities  1,672  92  1,672  92  

          
Financing Activities          
          
Interest paid  (1,709)  (1,787)  (1,709)  (1,787)  
Interest received  427  339  427  339  
Repayment of loan capital  (1,906)  (1,765)  (1,906)  (1765)  
Loan balance write off  (1,430)  -  (1,430)  -  
          
Net cash flows from financing activities  (4,618)  (3,213)  (4,618)  (3,213)  

          
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  738  10,427  (413)  6,038  
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April  75,647  65,220  71,258  65,219  
          
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 12 76,385  75,647  70,845  71,258  

 
 
*The 2018/19 Loss on disposal of non-current assets includes the part disposal of an infrastructure asset with a Net Book 
Value of £2.668m.  This asset was fully grant funded and therefore the release of deferred grant offsets this loss.  
 
The profit on disposal of assets is detailed in Note 7. 
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The Notes on pages 26 to 61 form part of these accounts. 

 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis demonstrates how the funding available to the authority for the year has been 
used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the authority in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices.  The analysis also presents a reconciliation of the adjustments between the 
authority’s financial performance under the funding position and the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis below contains data relating to the 2018/19 financial year for Nexus. 
 

      2018/19 

  

Net 
Expenditure 

Chargeable to 
Useable 

Reserves 
£000 

 

Adjustments 
between 

Funding and 
Account Basis 

 
£000 

 

Net Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure 

Statement 
£000 

Metro  (25,100)  -  (25,100) 
Concessionary Travel  (38,914)  -  (38,914) 
Bus Services and Infrastructure  (12,934)  -  (12,934) 
Other Transport Services  (3,281)  (4,902)  (8,183) 
Corporate costs  (1,534)  (121)  (1,655) 
Non distributed costs  -  (38)  (38) 

Net Cost of Services  (81,763)  (5,061)  (86,824) 
       
Grants  56,367  -  56,367 
Grant release  27,620  264  27,884 
Revenue Contribution to Capital  1,403  (1,403)  - 
Other Income and Expenditure  (1,145)  (1,750)  (2,895) 

Total Other Income and Expenditure  84,245  (2,889)  81,356 
       

Surplus or deficit  2,482  (7,950)  (5,468) 
       
Opening Reserves Balance      444,257 
Less / Plus Surplus or Deficit on Reserves      (5,468) 
Taxation      - 
Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability      12,253 

Closing Reserve Balance as at 31st March   
   451,042 
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Table 1 – Material Adjustments 
 

Adjustments from Reserves to arrive 
at the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement accounts 

Adjustments 
for Capital 
Purposes1 

 
Net change 
of Pensions 

Adjustment2 

 
Other 

Differences 

 
Total 

Adjustments 

 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Metro -  -  -  - 

Concessionary Travel -  -  -  - 

Bus Services and Infrastructure -  -  -  - 

Other Transport Services -  (4,902)  -  (4,902) 

Corporate costs -  (121)  -  (121) 

Non distributed costs -  (38)  -  (38) 

Net Cost of Services -  (5,061)  -  (5,061) 
        

Grants -  -  -  - 

Grant release 264  -  -  264 

Revenue Contribution to Capital (1,403)  -  -  (1,403) 

Other Income and Expenditure -  (1,750)  -  (1,750) 

Total Other Income and Expenditure (1,139)  (1,750)  -  (2,889) 
        

Surplus or deficit (1,139)  (6,811)  -  (7,950) 

 
 
1 - Represents the difference between the capital grants released to fund depreciation of grant funded assets and the 
net increase in the deferred capital grants. 
 
2 - Analysis of pension adjustments completed in line with IAS 19 as detailed in Note 20 (and consolidation of the 
NEMOL pensions liability). 

 
 

 
Table 2 – Material Income and Expenditure: 

Services 

Revenue 
from External 

Customers  
£000 

Metro 46,298 

Concessionary Travel  

Bus Services and Infrastructure  

Other Transport Services  

Total income analysed on a Segmental Basis 46,298 
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1 Introduction 
 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.   
These require the accounts to be no less informative than if the disclosure requirements of the Companies Acts 
were, as far as appropriate, applicable.  They also require that the accounts are prepared in accordance with the 
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19. 

 
The financial statements were authorised for issue at a meeting of the directors on xxxxxx. 

 
 
2 Basis of Preparation 

 
The Group financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain operational 
assets that are measured at fair value, in accordance with the Code of Practice.  The consolidated accounts have 
been prepared using consistent accounting policies, removing inter-company transactions and balances 
outstanding at 31 March 2018.  

 
Statement of Compliance with IFRS 

 
Nexus has adopted all aspects of IFRS requirements other than as follows:- 

 

• Property, Plant and Equipment. IAS 16 allows either the cost model or the fair value model to be adopted 
for the subsequent measurement of property, plant and equipment. The Code of Practice allows use of the 
cost model for infrastructure, non-operational assets and intangibles. Nexus considers that where 
appropriate the cost model has been adopted. 

 

• Pension Operating Costs. IAS 19 determines that all costs in relation to employee benefit schemes should 
be charged to profit and loss each period.  However, the Audit and Accounts Regulations 2015 allow Nexus 
to recognise only the amount payable under the relevant pensions regulations.  Therefore, although the 
costs are recorded, they are then credited back from a notional reserve.  Refer to Note 20 for further 
details. 

 
Consolidation 

 
The Group financial statements include the results of the subsidiary Tyneside Transport Services as at 31 March 
2019. 

 
 
3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
3.1  Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets 
 

• Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, with the 
exception of certain operational assets which are measured at fair value.  Nexus’ policy is to write off the 
carrying value of all assets, other than freehold land, on a straight line basis over their estimated remaining 
useful lives. 

 

• The range of estimated useful lives for each class of assets is as follows :- 
 

Freehold buildings 40 years 
Short leasehold buildings over the lease term 
Infrastructure assets  up to 50 years  
Plant and equipment 5 to 30 years 
Vehicles 5 to 10 years 
Marine Vessels 30 years 
Intangibles 5 to 15 years 
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• Nexus analyse assets into their component parts as appropriate for items in excess of £100,000.  
 

• Expenditure that cannot be directly allocated to specific assets – i.e. administration of the Capital 
Programme and for preliminary consultancy works are fully charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year in which they are incurred. 

 

• Expenditure less than the de-minimis level of £10,000 is not capitalised. 
 

• Depreciation on the asset is commenced with effect from the month following capitalisation.  Capitalisation 
of assets is carried out as soon as practicable following their availability for use. 

 

• Annual reviews are made of the estimated remaining life and current carrying amount of assets, ensuring 
that significant assets with a life greater than five years are reviewed annually. 

 

• An annual assessment is made at the end of each financial year as to whether there is any indication that 
an asset, or class of assets, is impaired, i.e. whether its carrying value in the accounts exceeds its 
recoverable amount.  Where an asset is determined to be impaired its carrying value will be written down 
to its recoverable value. 

 

• For the on-going measurement of property, plant and equipment, Nexus is adopting a Code of Practice 
which requires the fair value method to be applied to non-infrastructure operational assets.  This heading 
includes the Passenger Ferries and various items of Metro Equipment. Nexus has set a materiality level of 
£100,000 and a five-year life before valuations are sought. 

 

• Non-current assets classified as held for sale are classified as such, and measured at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not 
depreciated. 

 
3.2  Assets under Construction 
 

• Assets under construction relate to expenditure incurred in respect of assets which are incomplete as at 
the reporting date. The assets are transferred to the appropriate heading and depreciated when they 
become available for use. 

 
3.3  Grants 
 

• Capital grants receivable are recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement except where the grant has a condition that has not yet been met.  These amounts are 
recognised in the Balance Sheet- Short Term Liabilities until such time as the conditions are met whereupon 
they are transferred to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

• Specific revenue grants are allocated to the relevant areas within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in order to comply with the terms and conditions of the grant.  Non-specific grants 
are shown separately within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
3.4  Stores 
 

• Nexus carry spares and parts for the maintenance of Metro infrastructure and equipment not for resale.  
These are valued at actual historic cost after provision for slow moving items on a “First in First out” basis. 
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3.5  Financial Assets 
 

• Financial assets are classified at recognition as loans, deposits or receivables in accordance with IAS 39, and 
recognised at cost.  Nexus has not designated any financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss, 
although an estimate of the current fair value of long term borrowings is given in Note 18.  Nexus’ financial 
assets include cash, short-term deposits, trade and other receivables. 

 

• Subsequent measurement depends on their classification as follows :- 
 

• Cash and cash equivalents: funds held with banks and other financial institutions. For the purpose of 
the Group cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts. 

 

• Trade and other receivables: recognised and carried at invoice or contract value less an allowance for 
any amounts which may not be collectable.  Should an amount become uncollectable, it is written off 
to the income statement in the period in which it is recognised. 

 
3.6 Financial Liabilities 
 

• Financial liabilities are classified at recognition as loans and borrowings in accordance with IAS 39, and 
recognised at cost.  Nexus has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.  
Nexus’s financial liabilities include bank overdraft, trade creditors, loans and other payables. 

 

• Subsequent measurement depends on their classification as follows :- 
 

• Loans and borrowings: non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments not 
quoted in an active market.  Such interest-bearing liabilities are carried at that value which 
corresponds to the amount required for full repayment of the loan over its natural term.  

 

• Trade and other payables: recognised and carried at invoice or contract value.  Should an amount 
become non-payable, it is written back to the income statement in the period in which it is recognised. 

 

• Borrowing costs are recognised as a revenue expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
3.7  Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
 

• Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial 
Position, if and only if there is an enforceable legal right to offset, and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis in order to realise the assets and discharge the liabilities simultaneously. 

 
3.8  Provisions 
 

• Provisions are recognised when Nexus has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event which makes it probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of its amount. 

 

• Where Nexus expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, 
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset only if the reimbursement is highly probable. 

 

• The expense relating to any provision is recognised in the income statement net of any reimbursement. 
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3.9  Revenue 
 
Revenue mainly comprises the value of all passenger receipts in the normal course of business and the activity’s share of 
revenue from the countywide travel schemes. The Nexus management accounts reported internally and to the Transport 
North East Committee include additional income related to internal allocations of income for concessionary travel on 
Metro, the Ferry and certain Secured Bus Services.   
 
3.10  Accruals and Revenue Recognition 
 

• The financial statements, other than the cash flow, are prepared on an accruals basis, with activity being 
accounted for in the year that it takes place rather than when cash payments are made or received.  

 
3.11  Overheads 

 

• The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in 
accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice 2018/19. The full cost of overheads 
and support services is allocated across users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 
 
o Corporate and Democratic Core - costs relating to democratic representation, public accountability, 

governance and management of Nexus. 
 
o Non-distributed Costs - the cost of payments towards the pension scheme deficit and one-off 

contributions to transport projects within Tyne and Wear, offset by the effects of any changes to the 
accounting treatment of balances advanced to Nexus in prior years by NECA or its predecessors. 

 
3.12  Lease Income 
 

• Amounts receivable under finance leases are stated net of interest allocated to future periods.  Interest is 
allocated to accounting periods to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the remaining net 
investment. 

 

• Rentals receivable under operating leases and secondary rentals received and retained by the group under 
finance leases, are credited to income as they arise.  Any premia or incentives within the lease are 
recognised within income on an equal basis over the term of the lease. 

 
3.13  Lease Expenditure 
 

• Assets held under finance leases where Nexus retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership 
are capitalised in the balance sheet at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the net present value of 
the minimum lease payments; the assets are then depreciated over their useful economic lives. 

 

• The lease obligations are recognised as a financial liability.  The interest element of the rental obligations is 
charged to the revenue account over the period of the lease and represents a constant proportion of the 
balance of capital repayments outstanding. 

 

• Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to expenditure on a straight line basis over the term of the 
lease, recognising on an equal basis the impact of any premia or incentives. 
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3.14  Pensions and other employee benefits 
 

• Nexus participates in a defined benefit pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately in an 
independently administered fund.  The fund is valued every three years by a professionally qualified 
independent actuary.  The pension costs of Nexus, representing the contributions payable to the fund in 
respect of current employees, are charged to the revenue account in the year in which they are incurred as 
part of ‘Operational Costs’.  In addition, Nexus has an on-going liability for pensions increase costs in 
respect of certain past employees or their dependants.  To the extent that they cannot be met by the 
Pension Fund itself these costs are identified and shown separately as ‘Unfunded pension costs’. 

 

• Pension costs have been charged to the income and expenditure account in line with IAS 19, and then 
reversed out below ‘Operating surplus for the year’ applying to the statutory override provided by the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 

• Nexus's pension costs have been determined on the basis of contribution rates that are set to meet the full 
liabilities of the independently administered fund.   

 

• Benefits payable during employments, such as wages, salaries, paid leave and non-monetary benefits, are 
recognised as an expense in year. 

 

• Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by Nexus to terminate a member of 
staff’s employment before the normal retirement date, or, an employee’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy.  These are charged on an accruals basis within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement where Nexus is demonstrably committed to the termination of employment of an employee or 
group of employees. 

 

3.15 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 
 

• The preparation of Nexus’ Group financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities at the 
reporting date.  However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability in future periods.  A 
movement of 1% in the depreciation of assets would equal £0.256m. 

 

• Pensions Liability - Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes 
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. The Pension Fund engages 
a firm of specialist actuaries to provide Nexus with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied, 
detailed in Note 20. 
 

• The other significant estimates within the accounts are those concerned with the depreciation of non- 
current assets as detailed in Note 3.1. 

 
 
3.16 Value Added Tax (VAT) 

 

• VAT would be included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement only to the extent that it 
is irrecoverable from HM Revenue and Customs.  Throughout 2018/19 Nexus has been able to reclaim all 
VAT charged on supplies and services. 

 
3.17  Deferred Taxation 
 

• Deferred taxation (which arises from differences in the timing of the recognition of items, principally 
depreciation, in the accounts and by the tax authorities) has been calculated on the liability method.  



Notes to the Accounts  

 

37 

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which will probably reverse, at the rates of tax likely to be in 
force at the time of reversal. 

 
3.18  Reserves 
 

• Nexus creates reserves from surpluses on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. These 
reserves are initially taken to the Usable Revenue Reserve. 

 

• An amount is retained in the Usable reserves as a Capital reserve to the level that the Directors consider 
prudent to ensure that future capital expenditure can be funded.  

 

• Where surpluses originate from the receipt of capital grants they are subsequently transferred to the 
Unusable reserve – Grant Deferred Account. An amount is transferred annually from the Grant Deferred 
Account to the Revenue reserve such that the end of year balance is equal to the net book value of the 
assets funded by the receipt of the grants. 

 

• Where assets are acquired by the use of reserves an amount equal to the value of reserves used is 
transferred from Usable reserve – Capital reserve to the Unusable reserve – Capital Reserve net of an 
amount such that the end of year the balance on the Unusable reserve – Capital Reserve is equal to the net 
book value of the assets thus funded. 

 

• The Unusable Reserve – Pension reserve is maintained in line with Note 19 such that the end of year 
balance equates to the value of the Net Pension Liability in the Balance Sheet. 

 
3.19  Contingent Assets and Liabilities 
 

• A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives Nexus a possible asset whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within Nexus’ 
control. 

 

• Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it 
is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

 

• A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives Nexus a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within Nexus’ control. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

 

• Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in Note 27 to the accounts. 
 
3.20 Events after the Balance Sheet date 
 

• Where an event occurs after the Balance Sheet date, favourable or unfavourable, which provides evidence 
of conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date, an adjusting event occurs and the amounts recognised 
in the Statement of Accounts will be adjusted to take into account any new information about that 
adjusting event. 

 

• Where an event occurs after the Balance Sheet date that is indicative of conditions that arose after the 
Balance Sheet date, the amounts recognised in the Statement of Accounts are not adjusted but are 
disclosed as a separate note to the accounts. 

 

• Any events after the balance sheet date 2018/19 are described in Note 24. 
 
3.21   Accounting standards that have been issued but have not been adopted 
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• A number of changes to accounting standards may affect the Statement of Accounts from 1 April 2019 and 
may require retrospective application:  
o From 2017/18, the 2017/18 Code of Practice requires local authorities to confirm their “going concern” 

basis for their financial statements  
 

o IFRS 9 Financial instruments: this new standard replaces IAS 39 from 2018/19 and changes the 
approach to financial assets and accounting for impairments; its impact is unlikely to be material  
 

o IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts: this new standard replaces IAS 18 from 2018/19 and aims to 
standardise practices around recognition of revenue from contracts; its impact is unlikely to be 
material  
 

o IFRS 16 Leases: this new standard replaces IAS 17 from 2019/20 and establishes a new model for 
lessees; its impact is not considered to be material (see Note 23). 
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4 Financing Costs and Investment Income 
 

 Group  Nexus 

 2019  2018  2019  2018 

 £000  £000  £000  £000 
        

Interest payable and similar charges 1,709  1,786  1,709  1,786 

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 1,750  1,582  1,070  980 

Interest receivable and similar income (545)  (307)  (545)  (307) 

Total financing and investment income and expenditure 2,914  3,061  2,234  2,459 

 
 
 
5 Surplus on provision of services for the year 
 
(a) The operating surplus for the year has been stated after the following have been charged/(credited) :- 
 

  Group  Nexus  
  2019  2018  2019  2018  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

Remuneration of Statutory Directors*  324  320  324  320  
         
Depreciation         

- Owned Assets 27,363  25,014  27,363  25,014  
- Leased Assets -  -  -  -  

         
Net loss / (gain) on disposal of non-current assets 167  (20)  167  (20)  
         
Auditors' remuneration          

- Audit of the Accounts 37  36  26  34  
- Other work 4  4  4  4  

         
Operating Lease Charges (includes service charge) 551  537  551  537  
 
* Statutory Directors are appointed by the North East Combined Authority 
 
(b) Remuneration banding 
 
The number of employees* (excluding Statutory Directors) whose remuneration falls into the following headings is :- 
 

  Group  Nexus 

 2019  2018  2019  2018 
        

£50,000 to £55,000 42  33  24  17 
£55,001 to £60,000 31  18  19  9 
£60,001 to £65,000 12  13  4  7 
£65,001 to £70,000 15  8  10  7 
£70,001 to £75,000 4  4  4  4 
£75,001 to £80,000 5  0  4  0 
£80,001 to £85,000 0  1  0  1 
£85,001 to £90,000 0  1  0  1 
          
 109  78  65  46 
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* The number of employees earning in excess of £50,000 across the Group increased because of the TUPE transfer of 
employees from DB Regio Tyne and Wear Limited. The number of Statutory Directors remained the same. 
 
(c) Remuneration of Directors  
 
The remuneration of the Statutory Directors over £50,000 is noted below :- 
 
2019 Salary  Pension  Total  
 £000  £000  £000  
       
Managing Director (Transport Operations) 125  21  146  
Director of Finance and Resources 100  17  117  
Director of Rail and Infrastructure 99  17  116  
       
 324  55  379  

 
 
 
2018 Salary  Pension  Total  
 £000  £000  £000  
       
Managing Director (Transport Operations) 127  22  149  
Director of Finance and Resources 97  17  114  
Director of Rail and Infrastructure 96  17  113  
       
 320  56  376  

 
 
(d) Redundancy Payments (Group) 
 
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of compulsory and other redundancies are set out 
below :- 

Exit Package Cost band 
(including special payments) 

Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies  

Number of 
other 

Departures 
agreed  

Total number of 
exit packages in 

each band  

Total Cost of 
Exit Packages in 

each band  
 2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  
                 
£0 to £20,000 -  -  1  1  1  1  18  18  
£20,001 to £40,000 -  -  1  1  1  1  73  26  
£40,001 to £60,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
£60,001 to £80,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
                 
Total -  -  2  2  2  2  91  44  

 
 
 
6 Taxation 
 
The charge / (credit) for taxation is as follows :- 
 

  Group  Nexus  
  2019  2018  2019  2018  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

Current Year Charge   495    495  
Deferred Tax at 17%    (213)    (607)  
         



Notes to the Accounts  

 

41 

   282    (112  

 
7 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
An analysis of the movements within the gross and depreciated or impaired book value of property, plant and 
equipment by key category is contained in the tables below :- 
 

GROUP 
Total  

Infra-
structure  

Land & 
Buildings  

Plant & 
Equipment 

 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Cost or valuation        

        

At 1 April 2017 685,112  652,295  1,739  31,078 
        

Transfers from assets under construction 43,567  42,671   -   896 

Derecognition – disposals (4,698)  (4,492)   -   (206) 
            

At 1 April 2018 723,981  690,474  1,739  31,768 
        

Transfers from assets under construction 31,795  29,249  -  2,546 

Derecognition – disposals (3,714)  (3,615)  -  (99) 
        

At 31 March 2019 752,062  716,108  1,739  34,215 
       

 
Depreciation and Impairment        

        

At 1 April 2017 241,264  222,963  625  17,676 
        

Depreciation provided during the period 24,564  22,244   41   2,279 

Derecognition – disposals (2,029)  (1,823)   -   (206) 
            

At 1 April 2018 263,799  243,384  666  19,749 
        

Depreciation provided during the period 26,743  24,095  40  2,608 

Derecognition – disposals (3,528)  (3,432)  -  (96) 
        

At 31 March 2019 287,014  264,047  706  22,261 
        

Net Book Value        
        

At 31 March 2018 460,182  447,090  1,073  12,019 
        

At 31 March 2019 465,048  452,061  1,033  11,954 
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NEXUS 
Total  

Infra-
structure  

Land & 
Buildings  

Plant & 
Equipment  

Leased 
Assets  

£000 
 

£000 
 

£000 
 

£000 
 

£000 

Cost or valuation          

          

At 1 April 2017 684,880  650,909  1,739  30,845  1,387 
          

Transfers from assets under construction 43,567  42,671   -   896   - 

Derecognition – disposals (4,698)  (4,492)   -   (206)   - 
               

At 1 April 2018 723,749  689,088  1,739  31,535  1,387 
          

Transfers from assets under construction 31,795  29,249  -  2,546  - 

Derecognition – disposals (3,714)  (2,803)  -  (99)  (812) 
          

At 31 March 2019 751,830  715,534  1,739  33,982  575 
       

 
  

Depreciation and Impairment          

          

At 1 April 2017 241,031  221,577  625  17,443  1,386 
          

Depreciation provided during the period 24,564  22,244   41   2,279   - 

Derecognition – disposals (2,029)  (1,823)   -   (206)   - 
               

At 1 April 2018 263,567  241,998  666  19,517  1,386 
          

Depreciation provided during the period 26,743  24,095  40  2,608  - 

Derecognition – disposals (3,528)  (2,620)  -  (96)  (812) 
          

At 31 March 2019 286,782  263,473  706  22,029  574 

          

Net Book Value          

          
At 31 March 2018 460,182  447,090  1,073  12,018  1 

          
At 31 March 2019 465,048  452,061  1,033  11,953  1 

 
 
 
The Net Book Value of land and buildings as at 31 March comprised:- 
 

 Group  Nexus  
 2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         

Freehold 1,033  1,073  1,033  1,073  
Long leasehold -  -  -  -  
Short leasehold -  -  -  -  
         
 1,033  1,073  1,033  1,073  
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Assets held under Finance Leases 
 
Nexus has a number of leases relating to infrastructure with subsidiary companies.  The carrying value of these assets 
held under finance leases at 31 March 2019 was £ 1,000 (2018: £1,000).  The annual rentals are at a peppercorn rate.  
The leases are in the secondary period and can be terminated at any time. 
 
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
In accordance with the Code of Practice on local authority accounting, Nexus carries out regular revaluations of all non-
infrastructure operational assets of a material net value. Fair value is determined by reference to market based 
evidence, adjusted for the nature, location and condition of the specific property. The latest revaluation of appropriate 
assets was carried out by GVA Grimley Limited (a qualified independent valuer) on 25 March 2015 in accordance with 
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation Professional Standards, which indicated a valuation of £687,000 
above the value of assets as shown in the Balance Sheet.   
 
The cumulative surplus held in Nexus’s undistributable revaluation reserve at 31 March 2019 was £687,000(2018: 
£687,000). 
 
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

The reported gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is calculated with reference to both the carrying value of the assets 
themselves, and also the write-back of any unamortised grant outstanding. In relation to the gains made during the year, 
they can be analysed as follows :- 
 

 Group  Nexus  
 2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         

Net proceeds from sale 19  20  19  20  
Derecognition of carrying values of assets (186)  -  (186)  -  
         
 167  20  167  20  
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8 Intangible Assets 
 
Group and Nexus       £000  

         
Cost or Valuation         
         
At 1 April 2017       6,937  
         
Transfers from assets under construction       1,220  
         
At 1 April 2018       8,157  
         
Transfers from assets under construction       125  
         
At 31 March 2019       8,282  

         
Amortisation         
         
At 1 April 2017       4,847  
         
Amortisation provided during the period       450  
         
At 1 April 2018       5,297  
         
Amortisation provided during the period       620  
         
At 31 March 2019       5,917  

         
Net Book Value         
         
At 31 March 2018       2,860  

         
At 31 March 2019       2,365  

 
Amortisation charged on intangible assets is included within the relevant segment of Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 
 
9 Assets under Construction 
 
Group and Nexus       £000  

         
Cost or Valuation         
         
At 1 April 2018       30,891  
         
Expenditure incurred       25,836  
         
Transferred to fixed assets       (31,920)  
         
At 31 March 2019       24,807  
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Capital Commitments 
 
At 31 March 2019 Nexus has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of Property, Plant 
and Equipment in future years budgeted to cost £14.95m (2018: £18.47m).  The major commitments are:-  
 

 £m 

Nexus Learning Centre 4.47 

Track works – Gateshead Stadium to Felling 3.68 

South Shields Interchange 0.97 

Overhead Line 1.20 

Location Case Rewire 0.52 

Shiremoor, Palmersville, Benton, Longbenton Stations 0.52 
 
 
 
10 Investments 

 
The Group holds the following unquoted investments :- 
 
     2019  2018  
     £  £  
         
Subsidiaries         
 
North East Metro Operations Limited (NEMOL)     1  1  
         
Tyneside Transport Services Limited          

- Ordinary Shares of £1 each     25  25  
- 5% Non-Cumulative Preference Shares of £1     375  375  

         
     401  401  
Associated Undertakings         
         
Network Ticketing Limited     407  407  
         
     808  808  

 
North East Metro Operations Limited (“NEMOL”) is a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Great Britain and is 
included in the consolidation.  The principal activity of the subsidiary is operations of the Metro infrastructure.  The 
company shares the same financial reporting period and prepares accounts under the FRS 101 reduced disclosure 
framework.  
 
Tyneside Transport Services Limited (“TTS”) is a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Great Britain and is included in 
the consolidation.  The principal activity of the subsidiary is vehicle and plant leasing.  The subsidiary shares the same 
financial reporting period and adopts accounting policies consistent with those used throughout the group. 
 
The holding in Network Ticketing Limited (“NTL”) represented 406 of the 1,000 Ordinary £1 shares in issue and 1 of the 
34 Ordinary £1 "A" shares in issue.  NTL’s business is the operation of a countywide all modes public transport ticket. 
 
 
Subsidiary Audit Exemption 
 
For the year ending 31 March 2019, Tyneside Transport Services Limited (company registration number 01029328) was 
entitled to exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies.  
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The latest available accounts for the subsidiaries and associated undertakings show :- 
 

 NEMOL  TTS  NTL 
      

Accounting period ended 31st March   31st March  30th June 
 2019  2019  2018 
 £000  £000  £000 
      

Turnover 35,147  548  - 

      

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (2,907)  2  - 

Taxation -  -  - 

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (2,907)  2  - 
      

Fixed Assets -  -  - 

Current Assets 6,626  417  1,266 

Liabilities due within one year (5,574)  (188)  (1,265) 

Liabilities due after more than one year (28,369)  -  - 

Aggregate of Capital and Reserves (27,317)  229  1 

 
 
 
11 Inventories 
 

   Group and Nexus 
   2019  2018 
   £000  £000 
      

Opening balance   2,852  901 

Purchases   3,597  6,102 

Consumed in year   (3,523)  (2,866) 

Movement in slow moving provision   30  (1,284) 
       

Closing balance   2,956  2,852 

 
 
 
12 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

  Group  Nexus  

  2019  2018  2019  2018  

  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

Cash at bank and in hand 6,014  5,697  1,145  1,309  

Short term deposits  70,371  69,950  69,700  69,950  
         
 76,385  75,647  70,845  71,258  
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13 Short Term Debtors 
 
Amounts falling due within one year :- 
 

  Group  Nexus  
  2019  2018  2019  2018  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

Central Government Bodies 13,670  8,364  13,670  8,364  
Local Authorities 999  4,631  999  4,631  
NHS Bodies 82  81  82  81  
Public Corporations -  -  -  -  
Other entities and individuals 1,939  3,298  1,256  2,095  
Amount due to group undertakings -  -  388  1,781  
             
 16,689  16,375  16,394  16,953  

 
 
14 Short Term Borrowing 
 

    Group and Nexus  
      2019  2018  
      £000  £000  
          

Loans repayable by instalments     1,575  3,335  

 
 
 
15 Short Term Creditors 

 
Trade and other payables :- 
 

  Group  Nexus  
  2019  2018  2019  2018  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

Central Government Bodies 1,322  2,819  1,322  1,346  
Local Authorities 552  1,802  552  1,802  
NHS Bodies -  -  -  -  
Public Corporations -  -  -  -  
Other entities and individuals 22,667  19,727  17,286  16,481  
Amounts due to group undertakings -  -  820  1,828  
             
 24,540  24,348  19,980  21,457  

 
Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days or less. 
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16 Provisions 
 
Provisions are established to meet liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred, but the amounts or 
timings are uncertain.  Provisions during the year may be analysed as follows :- 
 

  Total  
Insurance 

Excess1  
Employment 

Related2  

Capital 
Expenditure 

/ Other3  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

At 01 April 2018 3,222  137  2,817  268  
         
Additional provisions made 1,378  -  1,377  130  
Utilised during the year (134)  (134)  -  -  
Unutilised provisions reversed -  -  -  -  
         
At 31 March 2019 4,466  13  4,194  269  

 
 
1. Public Liability claims, for minor accidents to the public, and Employers Liability claims for work related  
 illnesses received for incidents prior to the year end.  It is uncertain as to the timing of the outflow of these 

provisions held.   
 
2. Costs for certain employment related obligations and benefits. Whilst it is possible that some payments will 

occur during the year, it is more probable that any payment would occur during 2019/20 or later. 
 

3. Claims for additional costs associated to the Nexus Capital programme and Other specific provisions not related 
to insurance claims or employment.  It is uncertain as to the timing of the outflow of these provisions held. 

 
 
 
17 Deferred Tax 
 

  Group  Nexus  
  2019  2018  2019  2018  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

The movement for the year comprises         
          

Excess of Capital Allowances over depreciation   (293)    (686)  
Roll over relief on capital gains   (1)    (1)  
Tax effect of losses   -    -  
Other timing differences   80    80  
         
   (213)    (607)  

         
The balance at the year-end comprises         
         
Excess of Capital Allowances over depreciation 3,531  3,531  4,631  4,631  
Roll over relief on capital gains 1,232  1,232  1,232  1,232  
Tax effect of losses -  -  -  -  
Other timing differences -  -  -  -  
         
 4,763  4,763  5,863  5,863  
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18 Financial Instruments 
 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet :- 
 

Financial Assets 
 

Group   2019    2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         
Unquoted Equity Investment at cost   1    1  
         
Loans and receivables         
          
 Current Debtors  3,809    12,927    
 Short term deposits 76,385    75,647    

   80,194    88,574  
         
   80,195    88,575  

 

Nexus   2019    2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         
Unquoted Equity Investment at cost   1    1  
         
Loans and receivables         
          
 Current Debtors  3,998    13,326    
 Short term deposits 70,845    65,221    

   74,843    78,547  
         
   74,844    78,548  

 
 

Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 
 Group  Nexus  
 2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         
Current trade creditors and accruals (19,616)  (15,898)  (14,235)  (15,906)  
         
Interest bearing loans and borrowings:         
         
Fixed rate borrowings – due within one year (1,575)  (3,335)  (1,575)  (3,335)  
Fixed rate borrowings – due after one year (36,726)  (38,302)  (36,726)  (38,302)  
         
 57,917  (57,535)  (52,536)  (57,543)  

 
 
Instalments on borrowings are payable as follows :- 
   Group and Nexus  
     2019  2018  
     £000  £000  
         
Within 1 year      1,575  3,335  
Within 1 to 2 years     1,517  1,575  
Within 2 to 5 years     4,225  4,386  
Within 5 to 10 years     6,076  6,305  
Longer than 10 years (scheduled to be repaid in full by 2029/30)     24,908  26,035  
         



Notes to the Accounts  

 

51 

     38,301  41,637  
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The long term loan detailed above is due to NECA.  It is not possible to identify specific loans held by NECA as relating to 
the Nexus loan since their borrowings are on a pooled basis at various interest rates.  Nexus is charged an interest rate 
representing an average of rates applying to NECA’s own borrowings. 
 
The “fair value” of the Nexus long term borrowing has been calculated using an average of the fair value uplift of NECA 
loans across their pool of 61.8% (2019) and 65.4% (2018). 
 
Accordingly, the fair value of Nexus long term borrowing is as follows :- 

     2019  2018  
     £000  £000  
         

Fixed rate borrowings – due after one year     36,726  38,302  
         
Uplift (categorised at level 1 in the Fair Value Hierarchy)     22,710  25,046  
         
Fair value of borrowings     59,436  63,348  

 
 
 
19 Reserves 
 
The balances at the year-end comprise :- 
 Group  Nexus  
 2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         
Usable Reserves         
          
 Revenue 15,668  18,747  13,293  13,819  
 Capital 33,003  29,153  33,003  27,674  
          
 Total 48,671  47,900  46,296  41,493  

          
Unusable Reserves         
          
 Capital 25,976  25,668  25,976  27,338  
 Pension (65,139)  (70,581)  (36,770)  (41,220)  
 Grant Deferred 440,846  440,582  440,846  432,093  
 Revaluation 687  687  687  687  
          
 Total 402,371  396,357  430,740  418,899  

          
         
Total Reserves 451,042  444,257  477,036  469,978  

 
 
Usable Reserves 
 
Usable reserves are those reserves that can be applied to fund expenditure and comprise both revenue and capital 
commitments. 
 
Unusable Reserves 
 
Unusable reserves are those reserves that cannot be applied to fund expenditure since they have already been 
expended.  These comprise :- 
 

• capital reserves which reflect reserves utilised to fund capital expenditure, 
 

• a Revaluation Reserve reflecting the revaluation of certain properties carried out in 2015 detailed in Note 7,  



Notes to the Accounts  

 

53 

  



Notes to the Accounts  

 

54 

 

• a Grant Deferred reserve reflecting the unamortised value of grants received to fund capital expenditure, and 
 

• A Pension Reserve reflecting the gross deficit on funding the Nexus Pension Scheme 
 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for 
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.  Nexus accounts for 
post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by 
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions 
and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, statutory arrangements require 
benefits earned to be financed as Nexus makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any 
pensions for which it is directly responsible.  The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a 
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources Nexus has set aside to 
meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits 
come to be paid. 
 
 
Movements on the Pension Reserve over the year comprise :- 
   Group and Nexus  
     2019  2018  
     £000  £000  
         
At 1 April 2018 70,581  41,220  
     
Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability (12,253)  (2,191)  
     
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (6,737)  (6,732)  
     
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 13,548  38,284  
     
At 31 March 2019 65,139  70,581  

     
 

Consolidated Pension Liability 
 

The Group pension liability of £65.139m (2018: £70.581m) is the sum of the Nexus and NEMOL pension liability.  The 
details of the NEMOL pension liability of £28.369m (2018: £27.741m) are set out within the NEMOL Annual Report 
and Accounts using the FRS 102 disclosure framework. 
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20 Employee Benefits – Pension Costs 
 
The following transactions relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme and Unfunded Benefits provided by Nexus 
have been included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement during the year. 
 

 
Local Government Pension 

Scheme  Unfunded Benefits  
         
 2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account         
         
Cost of Services         
         
Current Service costs 6,030  6,000  -  -  
Past Service costs  - -  -  -  
         
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure         
         
Interest cost 6,960  6,510  100  100  
Expected Return on Scheme Assets (5,990)  (5,630)  -  -  
         
Total Post-employment benefit charged to the Surplus or 
deficit on the provision of Services 

        

7,000  6,880  100  100  
         
Other Post-employment benefit charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account (9,520)  (1,860)  (100)  40  
         
Total Post-employment benefit charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account 

        

(2,520)  5,020  -  140  
         
Movement in Reserves Statement         
         
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for 
the Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in 
accordance with the Code 5,720  (1,860)  350  240  
         
Employer’s Contribution to Scheme 3,200  3,160      

         
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners     350  380  

         
 
 
The Pension Scheme liability at 31 March 2019 comprised :- 
     2019  2018  
     £m  £m  
         

Funded Benefits     (33.21)  (38.93)  
         
Unfunded Benefits     (3.56)  (3.91)  
         
Net pension liability     (36.77)  (42.84)  
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Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 

 
Local Government 
Pension Scheme  

Unfunded 
Benefits  Total  

 2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  
             
Present Value of defined benefit obligation 280.31  270.99  3.56  3.91  283.87  274.90  

             
Fair Value of plan assets (247.10)  (232.06)  -  -  (247.10)  (232.06)  

             
Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 33.21  38.93  3.56  3.91  36.77  42.84  

 
 
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets 
 

 

Local 
Government 

Pension Scheme  Unfunded Benefits  Total  
 201 9 2018  2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  
             
Opening Fair value of scheme assets 232.06  226.80  0.00  0.00  232.06  226.80  

             
Interest income on assets 5.99  5.63  0.00  0.00  5.99  5.63  

             
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on assets 12.63  3.27  0.00  0.00  12.63  3.27  

             
Contributions by the employer 3.20  3.16  0.35  0.38  3.55  3.54  

             
Contributions by participants 1.33  1.33  0.00  0.00  1.33  1.33  

             
Net benefits paid out 1 (8.11)  (8.13)  (0.35)  (0.38)  (8.46)  (8.51)  

             
Closing Fair Value of scheme assets 247.10  232.06  0.00  0.00  247.10  232.06  

 
  
1 Consists of net cash-flow out of the Fund in respect of the employer, excluding contributions and any death in 

service lump sums paid, and including an approximate allowance for the expected cost of death in service lump 
sums. Also includes an allowance for fund administration expenses of £0.08m. 
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Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation) 
 

 

Local 
Government 

Pension Scheme  
Unfunded 
Benefits  Total  

 2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  
             
Opening defined benefit obligation 270.99  263.87  3.91  4.15  274.90  268.02  

             
Current service cost 6.03  6.00  0.00  0.00  6.03  6.00  

             
Interest expenses on defined benefit obligation 6.96  6.51  0.10  0.10  7.06  6.61  

             
Contributions by participants 1.33  1.33  0.00  0.00  1.33  1.33  

             
Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability :-             

              
 financial assumptions 14.25  (0.33)  0.08  0.00  14.33  (0.33)  

              
 Demographic assumptions (11.42)  0.00  (0.19)  0.00  (11.61)  0.00  

 experience 0.28  1.74  0.01  0.04  0.29  1.78  

             
Net benefits paid out 1 (8.11)  (8.13)  (0.35)  (0.38)  (8.46)  (8.51)  

             
Past service cost (inc curtailments) 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  

             
Closing defined benefit obligation 280.31  270.99  3.56  3.91  283.87  274.90  

 
1 Consists of net cash-flow out of the Fund in respect of the employer, excluding contributions and any death in 

service lump sums paid, and including an approximate allowance for the expected cost of death in service lump 
sums. Also includes an allowance for fund administration expenses of £0.08m. 

 
 
 
Funded Benefits 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The disclosures below relate to the funded liabilities within the Tyne & Wear Pension Fund (the “Fund”) which is part of 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (the "LGPS").  The LGPS is a funded defined benefit plan with benefits earned up 
to 31 March 2014 being linked to final salary.  Benefits after 31 March 2014 are based on a Career Average Revalued 
Earnings scheme.  Details of the benefits to be paid for the period covered by this disclosure are set out in the LGPS 
Regulations 2013 and the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014. 
 
The funded nature of the LGPS requires the Employer and its employees to pay contributions into the Fund, calculated at 
a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.  Information on the framework for calculating 
contributions to be paid is set out in LGPS Regulations 2013 and the Fund's Funding Strategy Statement.  The last 
actuarial valuation was at 31 March 2016 and the contributions to be paid until the date the next actuarial valuation of 
the Fund is available are set out in the Rates and Adjustment Certificate. 
 
The Fund Administering Authority, South Tyneside Council, is responsible for the governance of the Fund. 
 
 
Contributions for the accounting period ending 31 March 2020 
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The Employer's regular contributions to the Fund for the accounting period ending 31 March 2020 are estimated to be 
£7.17m. 
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Additional contributions may also become due in respect of any employer discretions to enhance members' benefits in 
the Fund over the next accounting period. 
 
The current Duration of Liabilities is 17.8 years. 
 
 
Assumptions 
 
The latest actuarial valuation of Nexus's liabilities took place as at 31 March 2016.  Liabilities have been estimated by the 
independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.  The principal assumptions used by the actuary in 
updating the latest valuation of the Fund for IAS 19 purposes were: 
 
Principal financial assumptions (% per annum) 

2019  2018  2017  2016  
         
Discount rate 2.4  2.6  2.5  3.4  

RPI inflation 3.3  3.2  3.1  2.9  

CPI inflation 2.2  2.1  2.0  1.8  

Rate of increase to pensions in payment1 2.2  2.1  2.0  1.8  
Rate of general increase in salaries  3.7  3.6  3.5  3.3  

Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.2  2.1  2.0  1.8  
         
1 In excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension increases in payment where appropriate. 
  
  
 
 
Mortality assumptions 
 
The mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality experience of members within the Fund and allow 
for expected future mortality improvements 

 

Post retirement mortality (retirement in normal health) 2019  2018  
     

Males     
Future lifetime from age 65 (aged 65 at accounting date) 22.2  22.9  
Future lifetime from age 65 (aged 45 at accounting date) 23.9  25.1  
     
Females     
Future lifetime from age 65 (aged 65 at accounting date) 25.3  26.4  
Future lifetime from age 65 (aged 45 at accounting date) 27.2  28.7  
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Asset Allocation 
 
The approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole (based on data supplied by the Fund Administering Authority) is 
shown in the table below.  The assets allocated to the Employer in the Fund are notional and the assets are assumed to 
be invested in line with the investments of the Fund set out below for the purposes of calculating the return to be 
applied to those notional assets.  The Fund is large and holds a significant proportion of its assets in liquid investments.  
As a consequence there will be no significant restriction on realising assets if a large payment is required to be paid from 
the Fund in relation to an employer’s liabilities.  The assets are invested in a diversified spread of investments and the 
approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole.   
 
The Fund Administering Authority may invest a small proportion of the Fund’s investments in the assets of some of the 
employer participating in the Fund if it forms part of their balance investment strategy. 
 

Asset split (%)  2019  2018 

  Quoted Unquoted Total  Total 

       
Equities  58.0 7.0 65.0  67.0 

Property  0.00 8.8 8.8  8.5 

Government bonds  4.1 0.0 4.1  4.0 

Corporate bonds  11.7 0.0 11.7  11.7 

Cash  2.7 0.0 2.7  3.7 

Other1  2.5 4.2 7.7  5.1 

       
Total  80.0 20.0 100.0  100.0 

 
1 Other holdings may include hedge funds, currency holdings, asset allocation futures and other financial instruments. It 
is assumed that these will get a return in line with equities. 
 
 
Reconciliation of funded status to Balance Sheet 
 
 2019  2018  2017  2016  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  
         
Fair value of assets 247.10  232.06  226.80  185.50  

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 280.31  270.99  263.87  220.05  
Funded status (33.21)  (38.93)  (37.07)  (34.55)  
Impact of minimum funding requirement/asset ceiling 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  
Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (33.21)  (38.93)  (37.07)  (34.55)  
 
The split of the defined benefit obligation at the last valuation date between the various categories of members was as 
follows :- 
 

Active members 34%        
Deferred pensioners 10%        
Pensioners 56%        
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Breakdown of amounts recognised in profit and loss / Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
 
    2019  2018  
    £m  £m  
         
Operating Cost        

         
 Current service cost 1    6.03  6.00  
 Past service cost (inc curtailments)    -  -  
         
Financing Cost        
         
 Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset)    0.97  0.88  
         
Pension expense recognised in profit and loss    7.00  6.88  

         
Remeasurements in OCI        
         
 Return on plan assets (in excess of)/below that recognised in net 

interest    (12.63)  (3.27)  
 Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability due to changes in :-      
  financial assumptions 14.25  (0.33)  
  Demographic assumptions (11.42)  0.00  
  liability experience 0.28  1.74  
         
Total Amount recognised in OCI    (9.52)  (1.86)  

         
Total Amount recognised    (2.52)  5.02  
 

1 The Current service cost includes an allowance for the administration expenses of £0.08m. 
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Actual return on assets 

 2019  
 

2018  
     £m  £m  
         
Interest income on assets     5.99  5.63  

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on assets     12.63  3.27  

         
Actual return on assets     18.62  8.90  

 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The approximate impact of changing the key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit obligation 
as at 31 March 2019 and the projected cost for the period ending 31 March 2020 is set out below.  In each case, only the 
assumption mentioned is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised above. 

 
Discount rate assumption       
Adjustment to Discount rate +0.1%pa  Base figure  -0.1%pa  
         
Present value of total obligation (£m)   275.37  280.31  285.34  

Change in present value of total obligation   -1.8%    1.8%  

Projected service cost (£m)   6.22  6.41  6.61  

Approximate change in projected service cost   -3.0%    3.1%  
 

 
Rate of general increase in salaries       
Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1%pa  Base figure  -0.1%pa  
         
Present value of total obligation (£m)   281.56  280.31  279.08  

Change in present value of total obligation   0.4%    -0.4%  

Projected service cost (£m)   6.41  6.41  6.41  

Approximate change in projected service cost   0.0%    0.0%  
 

 
Rate of increase to pensions in payment and deferred pensions assumption and rate of revaluation of pension accounts 
assumption 
Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1%pa  Base figure  -0.1%pa  
         
Present value of total obligation (£m)   284.08  280.31  276.59  

Change in present value of total obligation   1.3%    -1.3%  

Projected service cost (£m)   6.61  6.41  6.22  

Approximate change in projected service cost   3.1%    -3.0%  
 

 
Post retirement mortality assumption       
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption 1 -1 year  Base figure  +1 year  
         
Present value of total obligation (£m)   289.22  280.31  271.48  

Change in present value of total obligation   3.2%    -3.1%  

Projected service cost (£m)   6.66  6.41  6.16  

Approximate change in projected service cost   3.9%    -3.8%  
 

1 A rating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base table for an 
individual that is 1 year older than them. 
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Data Summary 
  
 
Active members as at 31 March 2016 

 
 Number  

Total Pay 
(£m)  

         
Total     571  17.79  
 
 
 
 
Pensioner and deferred pensioner numbers at 31 March 2016 

 

 Number  

Total 
Pension 

(£m)  
         
Deferred members     438  1.13  

Pensioners and dependants     1,370  6.61  

         
Total     1,808  7.74  

 
 
 
Unfunded Benefits 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The disclosures below relate to unfunded pension arrangements established by Nexus.  These are termination benefits 
made on a discretionary basis upon early retirement in respect of members of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and 
Wales) Regulations.  
 
No pension fund exists to meet these benefits. 
 
 
Contributions for the accounting period ending 31 March 2020 
 
In the accounting period ending 31 March 2020 the Employer expects to pay £0.36m directly to beneficiaries. 
 
 
Assumptions 
 
The latest actuarial valuation of unfunded LGPS benefits took place as at 31 March 2017.  Liabilities have been estimated 
by the independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.  The principal assumptions used by the 
actuary in updating the latest valuation of the Fund for IAS 19 purposes were :- 
 
Principal financial assumptions (% per annum) 
 2019  2018  2017  2016  
         
Discount rate 2.40  2.60  2.50  3.40  

RPI inflation 3.30  3.20  3.10  2.90  

CPI inflation 2.20  2.10  2.00  1.80  

Rate of increase to pensions in payment 2.20  2.10  2.00  1.80  
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Mortality assumptions 
 
The mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality experience of members within the Fund and allow 
for expected future mortality improvements. 
 
Post retirement mortality (retirement in normal health) 2019  2018  

     
Males     

Future lifetime from age 65 (aged 65 at accounting date) 22.2  22.9  
     
Females     

Future lifetime from age 65 (aged 65 at accounting date) 25.3  26.4  
 
Reconciliation of unfunded defined benefit obligation to the Balance Sheet 
       
 2019  2018  2017  2016  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  
         
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 3.56  3.91  4.15  4.20  

Pension (liability) recognised on the Balance Sheet (3.56)  (3.91)  (4.15)  (4.20)  
 
 
Breakdown of amounts recognised in profit and loss / Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
    2019  2018  
    £m  £m  
         
Operating Cost    0.00  0.00  

         
Financing Cost        
         
 Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset)    0.10  0.10  
         
Pension expense recognised in profit and loss    0.10  0.10  

         Remeasurements in OCI        
         
 Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit liability due to changes in :-        
          
  financial assumptions    0.08  0.00  
  Demographic assumptions    (0.19)  0.00  
  liability experience    0.01  0.04  
         
Total Amount recognised in OCI    (0.10)  0.04  

        
Total Amount recognised    0.00  0.14  
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21 Grant Income 
 
The following grants were credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year :- 
 
   2019    2018  
 £000  £000  £000  £000  
         
Non-Specific Grant Income         
          
 Revenue Support   56,367    57,557  
          
Cost of Services Income         
          
 Metro Rail 25,711    25,110    

 Heavy Rail 252    262    

 Other 628    547    

    26,591    25,918  
         
   82,958    83,475  
         
Capital Grants   27,884    33,185  

         
   110,842    116,660  

 
 
 
22 Related Party Disclosures 
 
These financial statements include the financial statements of Nexus and its subsidiaries; namely Tyneside Transport 
Services limited and North East Metro operations limited, in which Nexus hold a 100% equity interest. 
 
As well as the subsidiaries named above the directors regard the North East Combined Authority (NECA) as a Related 
Party by virtue of :- 
 

• its powers to appoint Nexus Directors  
 

• the responsibility of Nexus to execute NECA public transport policies 
 

• the significant level of Revenue Support Grant provided (Note 21 refers) 
 
Nexus accounts are consolidated into the NECA financial statements. 
 
Balances with NECA are included under the following Balance Sheet headings :- 
 

     Group and Nexus  
     2019  2018  
     £000  £000  
         
Debtors          4,514  4,292  
Creditors – Amounts falling due within one year     1,575  5,122  
Creditors – Amounts falling due after more than one year      36,726  38,302  
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During the year to 31 March 2019, Nexus entered into transactions with NECA as follows :- 
 

     £000  £000  
         
Grants received from NECA Revenue (Levy)    56,367    
 Revenue (Other)    628    
 Capital    5,649    
         
         
Loan repayments made to NECA       1,636  
         
Loan interest paid to the NECA       1,367  
 
NECA can be contacted at its main address at the Civic Centre, Newcastle upon Tyne NE99 1RD. 
 
Network Ticketing Ltd (NTL) provides multi modal, multi operator travel tickets for the Tyne & Wear region.  As the 
operator of the Tyne and Wear Metro, Nexus participates in the NTL travel ticket arrangements and receives a share of 
the revenues that are generated, commensurate with its market share.  John Fenwick, Nexus’ Director of Finance and 
Resources, and Huw Lewis, Nexus’ Director of Customer Services, are also Directors of Network Ticketing Ltd. 

Nexus provides the Continuous Monitoring Surveys that underpin the calculation of the market share of all participating 
operators, receiving income of £216,781 in 2018/19 (2017/18: £203,743).   Nexus also provides retail channels for NTL 
products, earning a commission from the sale of these products of £264,391 in 2018/19 (2017/18: £271,476).  Excluding 
these receipts, during the financial year 2018/19 Nexus received £5,872,631 in income from its participation in NTL 
(2017/18: £6,124,457).  
 
Funding for a substantial portion of the costs of operating the Metro and for the capital expenditure invested in public 
transport in Tyne and Wear is provided by grants received from the United Kingdom Government.  Consequently United 
Kingdom Government is a related party. Details of grants received are given in Note 21 to the Accounts. 
 
 
23 Lease Commitments 
 
There were no amounts due under external finance leases and hire purchase contracts for either Nexus or the group.  
There are annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows :- 
 

  2019  2018  

  Property  
Plant and 

Equip  Property  
Plant and 

Equip  
  £000  £000  £000  £000  
          

Operating leases which expire         
         
Within 2 - 5 years 14  -  30  -  
Over 5 years 513  -  513  -  
         
 527  -  543  -  

 
At 31 March 2019, the subsidiary company, Tyneside Transport Services Limited, has an operating lease with a remaining 
term of 6 years.  Nexus has guaranteed the lease payment, currently £513,150 per annum, to the landlord. 
 
The leases of land and buildings are subject to periodic rent reviews. 
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24 Post Balance Sheet events 
 
There have been no material post balance sheet events that would affect these accounts. 
 
 
25 Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 
 
Nexus activities expose it to a variety of financial risks :- 
 

• credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority 
 

• liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to 
make payments 
 

• market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such 
measures as interest rates 

 
Nexus overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services.  Risk management is carried out by the Finance 
Department, under policies approved by the Board in the annual treasury management strategy.  The Board provides 
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate 
risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to Nexus customers.  
This risk is minimised through the Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with financial 
institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, as laid down by professional Ratings Services.  The 
Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution located within each 
category.  The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the authority during 2018/19 and 2019/20 are detailed 
below:- 
 

  
2018/19 2019/20 

  
Long-term 

rating 
Cash limit 

Time 
limit 

Cash limit 
Time 
limit 

UK Central Government (irrespective of credit rating)   Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

UK Local Authorities   
£25m each 
£20m each 
£15m each 

1 year 
2 years 
3 years 

£25m each 1 year 

£20m each 2 years 

£15m each 3 years 

UK Banks and other organisations whose lowest published 
long-term credit rating from Fitch, Moody's and Standard 
and Poor's is : 

AAA 

£20m each 1 year £20m each 1 year 

AA+ 

AA 

AA- 

A+ 

A 

A- £15m each 6 months £15m each 6 months 

BBB+ £5m each 6 months £5m each 6 months 

UK money market funds and similar pooled vehicles whose 
lowest published credit rating is AAA 

AAA £10m each 1 year £10m each 1 year 
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UK building societies 

AAA 

£10m each 1 year  £10m each 1 year  

AA+ 

AA 

AA- 

A+ 

A 

A- £5m each 6 months £5m each 6 months 

BBB+ £1m each 100 days £1m each 100 days 

BBB N/A N/A N/A N/A 

BBB- N/A N/A N/A N/A 

UK building societies without credit ratings with assets 
greater than £250m 

  £5m each 6 months £5m each 6 months 

Banks domiciles in AAA rated sovereign countries 

AAA 

£5m each 1 year £5m each 1 year 

AA+ 

AA 

AA- 

A+ 

A 

A- N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Nexus’ current bank account (to bring in line with UK Banks 
rules and limits in Row 3 above) 

  As Row 3 As Row 3 As Row 3 As Row 3 

 
 

Customers for goods and services are assessed taking into account their financial position, past experience and other 
factors.  Risk in this area is low due to the majority of debtors being other public sector bodies.  
 
Nexus maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £5m per 
institution cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the 
principal sum will be specific to each individual institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities 
to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of Nexus deposits, but there was no 
evidence at the 31 March 2017 that this was likely to crystallise.  
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
The authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. 
If unexpected movements happen, the authority has ready access to borrowings from NECA.  There is no significant risk 
that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. 
 
All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.   
 
Market Risk 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Nexus is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.  An 
increase of 1% pa in the rate payable on interest bearing loans would increase the annual charge by £383,010 (2018: 
£416,370). 
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Nexus borrows via the NECA from the Public Works Loan Board. All current borrowings are subject to the current 
prevailing rate. 
 
Nexus invests funds on a short term basis (maximum length one year) and is therefore subject to the current prevailing 
rate. 
 
Price Risk 
 
Nexus does not invest in equity shares but does have shareholdings to the value of £808 in joint ventures.  This does not 
represent a material financial risk.  
 
Nexus does not possess material assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus have no exposure to 
material loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
 
 
26 External Audit Fees 
 
The following table details the amounts paid to external auditors (Mazars) for the financial years shown:- 
 

 2019  2018 
 £000  £000 
Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out 
by the appointed auditor for the year  

26  34 

Fees payable in respect of other services provided by external auditors during the 
year 

4  3 

 30  37 

 
 
 
27 Contingent Assets and Liabilities 
 
Nexus entered into a Guarantee Agreement on 31 March 2017 with the Tyne and Wear Pension Fund (the Fund).  Nexus 
agreed to guarantee all and any payments (howsoever arising) due from Metro Operations (NEMOL) to the Fund in line 
with the terms and regulations set out in the Admission Agreement.   
 
Nexus has received a claim on a large capital project from contractors concerning the value of the works completed to 
date.  It is difficult to quantify what, if any, liability will fall to Nexus. 
 
 
 
 



Glossary            

 

70 

 
Accounting period 
 
The period of time covered by the accounts, normally twelve months commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting 
period i.e. 31 March is the balance sheet date. 
 
Accounting policies 
 
Within the range of possible methods of accounting, a statement of the actual methods chosen locally and used to 
prepare these accounts. 
 
Accruals basis 
 
The method of including amounts in accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to an accounting period but 
for which payment has not been received or made by the end of the accounting period.  This is based on the concept 
that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money is received or paid. 
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses 
 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because: 

• events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation 

• experience gains or losses, or; 

• the actuarial assumptions have changed. 
 
Amortisation 
 
Reducing the value of a balance in an accounting period. The reduction in value is transferred from the balance sheet to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Annual Governance Statement 
 
An annual statement setting out the ways in which it ensures that Nexus’ business is conducted in accordance with the 
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. 
 
Appropriations 
 
Transferring of an amount between specific reserves in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Asset 
 
Something of value, measurable in monetary terms. 
 
Assets under Construction 
 
Assets which are under construction, but not considered to be in an operational condition at the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Audit and Accounts Regulations 2015 
 
The Statutory Instrument setting out the requirements for the audit of accounts of Local Authorities. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
A committee comprising non-executive directors meeting regularly to receive reports for internal and external audit. 
 
Bad (and doubtful) debts 
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Debts which may be uneconomic to collect or unenforceable in law.  
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Balances 
 
Reserves, both revenue and capital, which represent the accumulated surplus of income over expenditure on any of the 
funds. 
 
Balance Sheet 
 
A statement of the recorded assets, liabilities and other balances at the end of an accounting period. 
 
Budget 
 
A statement of the Nexus expected level of service expressed as an amount of spending over a set period, usually one 
year. 
 
Capital expenditure 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of non-current assets. 
 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 
 
Capital grants received in advance of the expenditure to which they relate. 
 
Capitalised 
 
Transferred from revenue to capital. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash in hand, cash overdrawn and short term investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash. 
 
Cash flow 
 
Movement in money received and paid by Nexus in the accounting period. 
 
Code (The) 
 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. 
 
CIPFA 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 
 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (The Code) 
 
The code of practice applicable to preparing the accounts. 
 
Component 
 
A significant part of an asset (such as a roof or major item of plant or equipment), which has to be separately identified 
for the purposes of accounting and asset management. 
 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
 
The account, that sets out Nexus’ income and expenditure for the year for non-capital spending. 
 
  



Glossary            

 

73 

 
Concessionary Travel 
 
The provision of free or discounted travel on local bus services under the provisions of the Transport Act 2000 and the 
Concessionary Bus Travel Act 2007.  The mandatory travel concession guarantees free off-peak local bus travel to 
eligible older and disabled people anywhere in England.  Nexus reimburses bus operators for ‘revenue forgone’ for any 
passenger boarding in Tyne and Wear. 
 
In addition to the mandatory bus concession, Nexus is also able to offer discretionary concessionary travel schemes, 
using powers provided in the Transport Act 1985. 
 
Consistency 
 
The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one period to the next 
should be the same. 
 
Consolidated 
 
Added together with adjustments to avoid double counting of income, expenditure or to avoid exaggeration as a result 
of trading between Nexus and its subsidiary which is reported on as a whole in the section on consolidated financial 
accounts. 
 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
 
The index has been designed as a macro-economic measure of consumer price inflation.  The official measure is 
calculated each month by taking a sample of goods and services that a typical household might buy including food, 
heating, household goods and travel costs.   
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A potential liability arising where an event has taken place that gives Nexus a possible obligation whose existence will 
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly its control. 
 
Contingencies 
 
Sums set aside as a provision for liabilities which may arise in the future but which cannot be determined in advance. 
 
Corporate & Democratic Core 
 
All activities that Nexus engages in specifically because of its status as authority public body acting on behalf of the 
NECA. 
 
Corporate management 
 
Those activities and costs which provide the framework for services to be undertaken and information required for 
public accountability. 
 
Creditors 
 
Amounts owed by Nexus for work done, goods received or services rendered to Nexus during the accounting period, 
but for which payment has not been made by the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Current assets 
 
Assets which will be consumed or cease to have value within the next accounting period, e.g. stock and debtors. 
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Current liabilities 
 
Amounts that Nexus owes to other bodies and are due for payment within 12 months. 
 
Current Service Cost (Pensions) 
 
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities expected to rise from employee service in the 
current period. 
 
Curtailment 
 
An event in a defined benefit pension scheme that reduces the expected years of future service of present employees 
or reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their future service, examples 
being termination of employees service through redundancy or amendment of the terms affecting future benefits. 
 
Debtors 
 
Amounts due to Nexus relating to the accounting period which have not been received by the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Deferred Liabilities 
 
Liabilities which are payable beyond the next year at some point in the future or paid off by an annual sum over a 
period of time. 
 
Deferred Taxation 
 
An accounting concept meaning a future tax liability or asset, resulting from temporary differences or timing 
differences between the accounting value of assets and liabilities and their value for tax purposes. 
 
Depreciation 
 
The reduction in value of an asset due to age, wear and tear, deterioration or obsolescence. 
 
Defined Benefit Scheme 
 
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or 
a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not 
have sufficient assets to pay all the employees benefits relating to employee service in the current or prior periods.  A 
defined benefit scheme is a pension or retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. 
 
Directors 
 
Senior managers appointed by the NECA, to control the activities of Nexus, as described in the Explanatory Foreword. 
 
Earmarked reserves 
 
These reserves represent the monies set aside that can only be used for a specific usage or purpose. 
 
Emoluments 
 
All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses or allowances (as far as those sums are 
chargeable to UK income tax) and the monetary value of any other benefits received other than in cash.  Pension 
contributions payable by either employer or employee are excluded. 
 
Exceptional items 
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Items that are material in terms of Nexus’ overall expenditure. 
 
 
Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets 
 
An actuarially calculated estimate of the return on the scheme’s investment assets during the year. 
 
Expenditure 
 
Costs incurred by Nexus for goods received, services rendered or other value consumables during the accounting 
period, irrespective of whether or not any movement of cash has taken place.  
 
Fair Value 
 
The fair value of an asset is the price at which it would be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where 
applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the assets. 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
The inputs used to measure fair value are categorised into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. 
 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at 
the measurement date. 
 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
  
Ferry 
 
The cross-Tyne passenger ferry operating between North and South Shields. 
 
Finance Lease 
 
A lease that transfers substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the body leasing the asset. 
  
Financial Asset 
 
A right to future economic benefits controlled by Nexus that is represented by cash, an equity instrument of another 
entity, a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of another entity. 
 
Financial Liability 
 
An obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by Nexus that is represented by a contractual obligation to 
deliver cash (or another financial asset) to another entity, or a contractual obligation to exchange financial 
assets/liabilities with another entity. 
 
Government grants 
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Grants made by the Government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to support the cost of the provision of 
services.  These grants may be specifically towards the cost of particular schemes or to support the general revenue 
spending of Nexus.  
 
 
 
 
Grant Deferred Account 
 
An un-useable reserve including grant receipts applicable to asset utilisation in future periods. 
 
Highways and Transport Services 
 
Public Transport operations undertaken, or commissioned, by Nexus. 
 
Historical cost 
 
The actual cost of assets, goods or services, at the time of their acquisition. 
 
Impairment 
 
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset, measured by specific means, below its stated carrying amount in the Balance 
Sheet. 
 
Income 
 
Amounts which Nexus receives or expects to receive from any source. 
 
Infrastructure Assets 
 
Assets such as stations, rail tracks and bridges. 
 
Interest Cost (pensions) 
 
For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period in the present value of the scheme liabilities 
because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 
 
Internal Audit 
 
A permanent section within Nexus whose function is to ensure that Standing Orders are followed and that financial 
procedures are properly carried out. 
 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) 
 
International Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, setting out how particular 
types of transactions and other events should be reflected in financial statements. 
 
IAS 16 
 
International Accounting Standard covering the accounting treatment of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
IAS 19 
 
International Accounting Standard covering the accounting treatment of Employee Benefits. 
 
IAS 39 
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International Accounting Standard covering the accounting treatment of Financial Instruments. 
 
IFRS 
 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
 
 
 
Inventories 
 
Raw materials and consumable items which Nexus has procured to use on a continuing basis and have not been used 
by the end of the accounting period. 
 
Investments 
 
Assets comprising company shares, other securities and money deposited with financial institutions (other than bank 
current accounts). 
 
Leasing 
 
A method of acquiring the use of an asset by paying a rental for a specified period of time, rather than purchasing it 
outright, comprising either Operating or Finance leases. 
 
Liabilities 
 
Amounts due to individuals or organisations, which will have to be paid at some time in the future. 
 
Local Transport Plan 
 
A ten-year strategy (2011 - 2021), produced by the Integrated Transport Authority, covering all forms of transport in 
Tyne and Wear, supported by the first in a series of three-year delivery plans (2011 - 2014), setting out how the 
strategy will be put into effect at a local level. 
 
Long Term Assets 
 
Tangible assets which have value to Nexus for more than one year. 
 
Materiality 
 
The concept that any omission from or inaccuracy in the statements of account should not be large enough to affect 
the understanding of those statements by a reader. 
 
Metro 
 
The Tyne and Wear Metro passenger transport system. 
 
North East Combined Authority (NECA) 
 
The body responsible for overseeing the public transport system across Tyne and Wear, Northumberland and Durham 
and for the promotion and development of the public transport network.  The NECA comprises elected Councilors from 
across the Region and it assumed the activities within Tyne and Wear formerly carried out by the Integrated Transport 
Authority on 1 April 2014. 
 
Net Book Value 
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The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current value less the 
cumulative amounts provided by depreciation. 
 
Net Realisable Value 
 
The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of investment Property), less 
the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 
 
Non-Current Asset 
 
Assets which have value to Nexus for more than one year. 
 
Operating Lease 
 
A type of lease where the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor and rental payments are recorded against 
services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
Events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date when the 
Statement of Accounts are authorised for issue. 
 
Provisions 
 
Amounts set aside in the accounts for liabilities or losses which are certain or very likely to occur but where there is 
uncertainty as to the amounts involved or the dates on which they will arise. 
 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
 
An independent company limited by guarantee incorporated by the Local Government Association in August 2014.  The 
company is responsible, inter alia, for appointing auditors to local government bodies and for setting audit fees, 
responsibilities discharged by the Audit Commission prior to 1 April 2015. 
 
Related Party 
 
A party that, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, Nexus. 
 
Remuneration 
 
Defined as sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as those 
sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits received other than in cash.  Pension 
contributions payable by the employer are excluded. 
 
Replacement Cost 
 
Cost of replacement of the asset at the balance sheet date. 
 
Reserves 
 
Amounts set aside in the accounts to meet expenditure which Nexus may decide to incur in a future period, but not 
allocated to specific liabilities which are certain or very likely to occur. 
 
Reserves are analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves’ 
(those that hold unrealised gains and losses, where amounts would only become available to fund expenditure if the 
assets are sold), and those that hold timing differences (for example the Capital Grant Deferred Account). 
 
Retail Price Index (RPI) 
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Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of prices at the retail level weighted by the average 
expenditure pattern of the average person. 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
 
Records unrealised revaluation gains arising from holding property, plant & equipment.  This reserve is matched by 
fixed assets within the Balance Sheet; therefore they are not resources available to Nexus. 
 
Revenue Contributions 
 
Method of financing capital expenditure directly from revenue. 
 
 
Revenue Support Grant 
 
A Grant paid to the Nexus by the NECA which is levied on the Local Authorities in Tyne and Wear to help to finance its 
general expenditure, as opposed to specific grants. 
 
Standing Orders 
 
The formal rules made to govern and regulate the conduct of Nexus' procedures and business. 
 
Strain on the Fund 
 
An early payment of retirement benefits for members aged 55 or over and under 60 generates a ‘Strain on the Fund’ 
cost, resulting in Nexus reimbursing the Tyne & Wear Pension Fund for the loss of employer and employee 
contributions and investment income which results from the employee retiring early. 
 
Subsidiary Company 
 
A company that is controlled by another company, which owns over 50% of the issued share capital. 
 
Tangible assets 
 
Physical assets owned by Nexus, which can be seen or touched e.g. buildings and equipment.  
 
UK GAAP 
 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in the UK. 
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Head Office   Nexus House 
    33 St James’ Boulevard 
    Newcastle upon Tyne 
    NE1 4AX 
 
    Tel 0191 203 3333 
    Fax 0191 203 3180 
 
Website    www.nexus.org.uk 
 
 
 
Other Offices 
 
Nexus Rail HQ   Gosforth Industrial Estate 
    Newcastle upon Tyne 
    NE3 1XW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Nexus” is the trading name of the Tyne & Wear Passenger Transport Executive 
 
The Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport Executive is a Body Corporate with perpetual succession under Statute 
(Transport Act 1968) 

 


